
 

    

 
 

 
 

RANCHO MURIETA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
15160 JACKSON ROAD 

RANCHO MURIETA, CA 95683 
916‐354‐3700 

FAX – 916‐354‐2082  
  

 

 AGENDA 
 

“Your Independent Local Government Agency Providing 
Water, Wastewater, Drainage, Security, and Solid Waste Services” 

 
 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
SEPTEMBER 21, 2016   
Open Session 5:00 p.m.  

District Administration Building – Board Room 
15160 Jackson Road 

Rancho Murieta, CA 95683 
 

 

 
BOARD MEMBERS 

 

Gerald Pasek  President 
Betty Ferraro  Vice President 
Morrison Graf  Director   
Michael Martel     Director 
Mark Pecotich    Director 
 

-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 

STAFF 
 

Darlene J. Thiel             General Manager  
Paul Wagner    Security Chief  
Paul Siebensohn    Director of Field Operations 
Eric Thompson  Controller 
Suzanne Lindenfeld   District Secretary 



    

Z:\Board\Board Packets\2016 Board Packets\09-21-2016 Board Packet\board agenda 09-21-2016.doc  Page 2 

RANCHO MURIETA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
SEPTEMBER 21, 2016 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING 
Open Session: 5:00 p.m.  

   
All persons present at District meetings will place their cellular devices in silent and/or vibrate mode (no ringing of any kind). 
During meetings,  these devices will be used only  for emergency purposes and,  if used,  the party called/calling will exit  the 
meeting room for conversation. Other electronic and internet enabled devices are to be used in the “silent” mode. Under no 
circumstances will recording devices or problems associated with them be permitted to interrupt or delay District meetings.  
 

AGENDA 
 

                                                                                                                                            ESTIMATED RUNNING TIME 

  1.  CALL TO ORDER ‐ Determination of Quorum ‐ President Pasek (Roll Call)                                        5:00 
   

  2.  ADOPT AGENDA (Motion)                             

The running times  listed on this agenda are only estimates and may be discussed earlier or  later than 
shown. At the discretion of the Board, an item may be moved on the agenda and or taken out of order. 

 

  3.  SPECIAL ANNOUNCEMENTS AND ACTIVITIES              

a.  District’s Candidates Night – October 13, 2016 at 7:00 p.m.  
 

  4.  COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC                                                           

Members of the public may comment on any  item of  interest within the subject matter  jurisdiction of 
the District and any  item specifically agendized. Members of  the public wishing  to address a specific 
agendized  item are encouraged to offer their public comment during consideration of that  item. With 
certain exceptions, the Board may not discuss or take action on items that are not on the agenda.  

 

If you wish to address the Board at this time or at the time of an agendized item, as a courtesy, please 
state your name and address. Speakers presenting  individual opinions shall have 3 minutes to speak. 
Speakers presenting opinions of groups or organizations shall have 5 minutes per group. 

 

  5.  CONSENT CALENDAR (Motion) (Roll Call Vote) (5 min.)                                           

All the following items in Agenda Item 5 will be approved as one item if they are not excluded from the 
motion adopting the consent calendar. 

a.  Approval of Board Meeting Minutes    
1.   August 17, 2016 Regular Board Meeting 

b.  Committee Meeting Minutes (Receive and File) 
1.  September 2, 2016 Security Committee Meeting 

c.  Approval of Bills Paid Listing 
 

  6.  STAFF REPORTS (Receive and File)                              

a.   General Manager’s Report   

b.   Administration/Financial Report 

c.   Security Report  

d.   Water/Wastewater/Drainage Report   



    

Z:\Board\Board Packets\2016 Board Packets\09-21-2016 Board Packet\board agenda 09-21-2016.doc  Page 3 

  7.   CORRESPONDENCE                                             
 

  8.  CONSIDER ADOPTION OF DISTRICT POLICY P2016‐02, IMPLEMENTATION AND USE OF 
SECURITY IMPACT FEES (Discussion/Action) (Motion) (Roll Call Vote) (10 min.) 

 

  9.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF USE OF WATER SUPPLY AUGMENTATION FUNDS FOR STONEHOUSE 
ROAD FORCE MAIN ASSESSMENT (Discussion/Action) (Motion) (Roll Call Vote) (5 min.) 

 

10.  REVIEW  OPERATIONS  MANUAL  FOR  THE  DELIVERY  AND  USE  OF  RECYCLED  WATER  AT 
RANCHO MURIETA COUNTRY CLUB (Discussion/Action)   

 

11.  RECEIVE STATUS REPORT ON SECURITY INFORMATION UPDATE (Discussion/Action)   
  

12.  DISCUSS STORMWATER BASINS WITHIN RANCHO MURIETA (Discussion/Action)   
  

13.  RECEIVE AND CONSIDER UPDATES (Discussion/Action) (15 min.)         
a.   Parks Committee 

b.  Pending and Proposed Land Development Projects  

c.  Escuela Gate 

d.  Midge Fly Ad Hoc Committee  

e.  Solar Power Installation 
 

14.  CONSIDER CONFERENCE/EDUCATION OPPORTUNITIES (Discussion/Action) (Motion)  
  

15.  REVIEW MEETING DATES/TIMES                     

a. Communications – October 3, 2016 at 4:00 p.m. 

b. Personnel – October 3, 2016 at 4:30 p.m. 

c. Security – October 7, 2016 at 8:30 a.m. 

d. Finance – October 7, 2016 at 9:00 a.m. 

e. Improvements – October 7, 2016 at 9:30 a.m. 

f. Regular Board Meeting – October 19, 2016 ‐ open session at 5:00 p.m.  
 

16.  DIRECTOR COMMENTS/SUGGESTIONS                                   

In  accordance  with  Government  Code  54954.2(a),  Directors  and  staff  may  make  brief 
announcements  or brief  reports  of  their  own activities.  They may ask questions  for  clarification, 
make a referral to staff, or take action to have staff place a matter of business on a future agenda.  

 

17.  ADJOURNMENT (Motion)                          
 

"In accordance with California Government Code Section 54957.5, any writing or document that is a public record, relates to an open session agenda item and is distributed 
less than 72 hours prior to a regular meeting, will be made available for public inspection in the District offices during normal business hours.  If, however, the document is 
not distributed until the regular meeting to which it relates, then the document or writing will be made available to the public at the location of the meeting." 
 
Note: This agenda  is posted pursuant to the provisions of the Government Code commencing at Section 54950. The date of this posting  is September 16, 2016. Posting 
locations are: 1) District Office; 2) Rancho Murieta Post Office; 3) Rancho Murieta Association; 4) Murieta Village Association. 

 



 

z:\board\board packets\2016 board packets\09-21-2016 board packet\agenda 5 a.doc   Page 1 of 5 
 

RANCHO MURIETA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
Board of Directors Meeting 

MINUTES 
August 17, 2016  

Call to Order and Closed Session 4:00 p.m. ‐ Open Session at 5:00 p.m. 

 
1.  CALL TO ORDER/ROLL CALL 
President Gerald Pasek called  the regular meeting of  the Board of Directors of Rancho Murieta Community 
Services District  to order at 4:00 p.m.  in  the District meeting  room, 15160  Jackson Road, Rancho Murieta. 
Directors present were Gerald Pasek, Betty Ferraro, Morrison Graf, and Michael Martel. Also present were 
Darlene  J.  Thiel Gillum, General Manager;  Paul Wagner,  Security  Chief;  Paul  Siebensohn, Director  of  Field 
Operations; Eric Thompson, Controller; Suzanne Lindenfeld, District Secretary; and Richard Shanahan, District 
General Counsel. Director Mark Pecotich was absent.      
 
2. ADOPT AGENDA 
Motion/Ferraro to adopt the agenda. Second/Graf. Ayes: Pasek, Ferraro, Graf, Martel. Noes: None. Absent: 
Pecotich. Abstain: None. 
 
3. CLOSED SESSION 
Under  Government  Code  Section  54956.9(d)(2):  Conference  with  Legal  Counsel  Regarding  Anticipated 
Litigation – Significant Exposure  to Litigation  Involving one Potential Case, M & R  Investment One Company 
Demand to Extend 1995 SHF Acquisition Corporation Reimbursement Agreement.  
 
4. OPEN SESSION/REPORT ACTION FROM CLOSED SESSION 
No action to report back.  
 
5. SPECIAL ANNOUNCEMENTS AND ACTIVITIES 
None.  
 
6.  COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
None.  
 
7. CONSENT CALENDAR 
Motion/Ferraro to adopt the consent calendar with the change in wording to Agenda Item 7a1. Second/Graf. 
Roll Call Vote: Ayes: Pasek, Ferraro, Graf, Martel. Noes: None. Absent: Pecotich. Abstain: None.     
 
8. STAFF REPORTS 
No discussion.  
 
9. CORRESPONDENCE 
None.  
 
10.  CONSIDER  EXTENSION OF  1995  SHF  ACQUISITION  CORPORATION  REIMBURSEMENT  AGREEMENT  AS 
REQUESTED BY M&R INVESTMENT ONE CORPORATION  
Darlene J. Thiel Gillum gave a brief summary of the recommendation to deny the request to extend the 1995 
Reimbursement Agreement with SHF Acquisition Corporation and allow the Agreement to expire.  
 

 



 

z:\board\board packets\2016 board packets\09-21-2016 board packet\agenda 5 a.doc   Page 2 of 5 
 

Randall  Block,  legal  counsel  for  M&R  Investment  One  Corporation,  commented  on  the  District  having 
previously extended the exact same  language extension and that he feels granting the extension now  is the 
right thing to do. Extending the Agreement does not cost the District anything.  
 
Director Martel commented that he feels the District has acted in good faith.  
 
President  Pasek  commented  on  when  the  District  granted  the  extension  last  year,  it  was  with  the 
understanding that all parties would get together and work out a resolution, which was not done.  
 
Mr. Block stated that they have tried, unsuccessfully, to work with the District.  
 
Motion/Martel  to  deny  the  request  to  extend  the  1995  Reimbursement  Agreement with  SHF  Acquisition 
Corporation  and  allow  the  Agreement  to  expire  according  to  its  terms  on  September  20,  2016. 
Second/Ferraro.  Roll Call Vote: Ayes: Pasek, Ferraro, Graf, Martel. Noes: None. Absent: Pecotich. Abstain: 
None.      
 
11. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF REIMBURSEMENT TO M&R INVESTMENT ONE CORPORATION FOR FOURTEEN 
(14) RETREATS WEST LOTS 
Motion/Martel  to approve  reimbursement  to M&R  Investment One Corporation  for  fourteen  (14) Retreats 
West lots in the amount of $32,018.  Funding to come from Developer Deposit – Retreats. Second/Ferraro.  
Roll Call Vote: Ayes: Pasek, Ferraro, Graf, Martel. Noes: None. Absent: Pecotich. Abstain: None.      
 
12. CONSIDER REQUEST FROM ROEBBELEN CONSTRUCTION, CONSTRUCTION MANAGER AT RISK, FOR AN 
ADJUSTMENT TO THE GUARANTEED MAXIMUM BUDGET FOR THE WATER TREATMENT PLANT EXPANSION 
PROJECT 
Darlene J. Thiel Gillum gave a brief summary of the recommendation to  increase the Guaranteed Maximum 
Budget for the Water Treatment Plant Expansion Project. Roebbelen is in the process of closing out the project 
with GE. All other trades have closed the project. Staff will continue to evaluate these and other change orders 
for possible deficiencies in the project plans and drawings.  
 
Motion/Graf  to approve  the negotiated  increase  to  the Guaranteed Maximum Budget of $150,243  for  the 
Water  Treatment  Plant  Expansion  Project.  Funding  to  come  from  Water  Capital  Replacement  Reserves. 
Second/Ferraro. Roll Call Vote: Ayes: Pasek, Ferraro, Graf, Martel. Noes: None. Absent: Pecotich. Abstain: 
None.    
 
13.  PUBLIC  HEARING  TO  CONSIDER  PLACING  DELINQUENT  ACCOUNTS ON  TAX  ROLLS OF  SACRAMENTO 
COUNTY FOR COLLECTION 
Darlene  J. Thiel Gillum gave a brief  summary of  the  recommendation  to place delinquent accounts on  the 
Sacramento County tax rolls. The County purchases these delinquencies, using the Teeter Plan, and the District 
receives payment from the County dollar for dollar. This is done annually. 
 
President  Pasek  opened  the  public  hearing  at  5:22  p.m.  and  asked  for  public  comments.  There  were  no 
comments. 
 
President Pasek closed the public hearing at 5:23 p.m. 
 



 

z:\board\board packets\2016 board packets\09-21-2016 board packet\agenda 5 a.doc   Page 3 of 5 
 

Motion/Ferraro to adopt Resolution R2016‐10 placing delinquent water, sewer, solid waste, security and/or 
drainage charges/taxes on the Sacramento County tax rolls to be purchased by Sacramento County under the 
Teeter Plan. Second/Graf. Roll Call Vote; Ayes: Pasek, Ferraro, Graf, Martel. Noes: None. Absent: Pecotich. 
Abstain: None.    
 
14. CONSIDER ADOPTION OF DISTRICT RESOLUTION R2016‐11 COMMUNITY FACILITIES DISTRICT NO 2014‐1 
ANNUAL SPECIAL TAX LEVIES 
Darlene J. Thiel Gillum gave a brief summary of the recommendation to adopt Resolution R2016‐11 placing CFD 
#2014‐1  annual  bond  levies  on  the  Sacramento  County  Tax  Rolls.  This  levy will  be  submitted  annually  to 
Sacramento County to be collected.   
 
Motion/Ferraro to adopt Resolution R2016‐11 for Community Facilities District No. 2014‐1 placing the annual 
bond  levies on  the Sacramento County Tax Rolls  for  the 2016‐2017  fiscal year. Second/Graf. Roll Call Vote; 
Ayes: Pasek, Ferraro, Graf, Martel. Noes: None. Absent: Pecotich. Abstain: None.    
 
15. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF FUNDING OF ADMINISTRATION COMPUTER SERVER FROM RESERVE FUNDS 
Darlene J. Thiel Gillum gave a brief summary of the recommendation to approve funding of the administration 
server from reserve funds. The replacement server was purchased on February 8, 2016 and has since been put 
into  service. Once  all  of  the  associated  costs were  identified,  the  total  exceeded  the  $5,000 Capital Asset 
threshold. Staff then realized that the old server was recorded as a Fixed Asset and is thereby eligible for use 
of Capital Replacement Reserve funding.  
 
Motion/Graf Approve Administration Capital Replacement Reserve funding in the amount of $6,212.69 for the 
purchase and  installation of a new data server from A Leap Ahead  IT. Second/Ferraro. Roll Call Vote; Ayes: 
Pasek, Ferraro, Graf, Martel. Noes: None. Absent: Pecotich. Abstain: None.    
 
16.  CONSIDER APPROVAL OF  CLOSING OF  1991  COMMUNITY  FACILITIES DISTRICT  #1  (CFD  #1)  BANK OF 
AMERICA AND CAMP ACCOUNTS 
Darlene J. Thiel Gillum gave a brief summary of the recommendation to approve the closing of 1991 CFD#1 
accounts and transfer the remaining monies to the Water and Sewer Capital Replacement Reserve accounts.  
 
Motion/Graf to declare the funds held in the Bank of America Community Facilities District No. 1 redemption 
checking  account  and  the  funds  held  in  the  California  Asset  Management  Program  (CAMP)  Community 
Facilities District No. 1 Special Tax Fund as surplus and approve the transfer of these surplus funds on a 50/50 
basis  to  the  Water  and  Sewer  Capital  Replacement  Reserve  accounts  as  allowed  under  the  Mello‐Roos 
Community Facilities Act of 1982, Section 53317 (j). Second/Ferraro.  
 
Director Martel stated that the feels the funds should be refunded to the residents that contributed instead of 
reserves. The estimated amount would be $24.00 each.  Darlene J. Thiel Gillum stated that it would cost more 
than that amount to process and  issue checks and recommended the remaining monies go  into reserves to 
support the facilities and infrastructure constructed with the CFD funds.  
 
Roll Call Vote; Ayes: Pasek, Ferraro, Graf. Noes: Martel. Absent: Pecotich. Abstain: None.    
 
17. CONSIDER APPROVAL OF RESERVE FUNDS FOR NEW SECURITY VEHICLE PURCHASE 



 

z:\board\board packets\2016 board packets\09-21-2016 board packet\agenda 5 a.doc   Page 4 of 5 
 

Chief  Wagner  gave  a  brief  summary  of  the  recommendation  to  approve  funding  from  Security  Capital 
Reserves to pay for a new security vehicle. The new patrol vehicle will replace Vehicle #517 which  is a 2006 
Ford Escape with 174,024 miles. The engine in this vehicle no longer runs. 
 
Motion/Martel to approve up to $20,400 for the purchase of a new Security patrol vehicle, which includes the 
cost of the vehicle, striping, signs, radio(s) etc. Funding to come from Security Capital Replacement Reserves. 
Second/Ferraro. Roll Call Vote; Ayes: Pasek, Ferraro, Graf, Martel. Noes: None. Absent: Pecotich. Abstain: 
None.    
 
18. CONSIDER ADOPTION OF DISTRICT PERSONNEL MANUAL UPDATES 
Darlene J. Thiel Gillum gave a brief summary of the recommendation to approve the proposed updates to the 
District Personnel Manual. The changes made are primarily for clarification of existing language and practice. 
 
Motion/Ferraro to adopt the proposed District Personnel Manual updates. Second/Graf. Roll Call Vote; Ayes: 
Pasek, Ferraro, Graf, Martel. Noes: None. Absent: Pecotich. Abstain: None.    
 
19.  CONSIDER  APPROVAL  OF  DISTRICT  APPOINTMENT  TO  SACRAMENTO  CENTRAL  GROUNDWATER 
AUTHORITY BOARD 

Darlene J. Thiel Gillum gave a brief summary of the recommendation to appoint a Director to the Sacramento 
Central Groundwater Authority Governing  Board  (SCGA). Although  the District  submitted  a  notice  of  non‐
participation, the SCGA has requested the District appoint a representative to their Governing Board, per the 
terms of the current SCGA Joint Powers Agreement until the JPA is modified. 

 
Motion/Martel  to  appoint  President  Pasek  as  the  District  representative.  Second/Ferraro.  Ayes:  Pasek, 
Ferraro, Graf, Martel. Noes: None. Absent: Pecotich. Abstain: None.  
 
20. RECEIVE AND CONSIDER UPDATES 
Parks Committee 
Director Pecotich has requested that Rancho Murieta Association (RMA) schedule a Parks Committee meeting 
to discuss and review the revised Parks Operating Guidelines. The Greens Park bids should be received soon as 
well. A date has not yet been scheduled. 
 
Pending Proposed Land Development Projects 
On  August  8,  2016,  the  Letter  of  Agreement  regarding  the Water  Supply  Augmentation  Fees  and  Capital 
Improvement  Fees  study  and  payment  of  fees  was  sent  to  John  Sullivan.  The  District  received  the  fully 
executed Letter of Agreement back today. 
 
Escuela Gate 
Sacramento  County will  begin  the  Stonehouse  Road  at  Escuela Drive  Intersection  Improvement  Project  in 
September  2016, with  the  estimated  completion  in October  2016.  Stonehouse Road will  be  closed  during 
construction for approximately four (4) weeks.  
 
Solar Power Installations 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Site 
The photovoltaic (PV) panels were installed and all wiring completed between the panels and power inverters. 
The underground boring and pulling of five (5) three inch (3”) conduits between the PV site and the point of 



 

z:\board\board packets\2016 board packets\09-21-2016 board packet\agenda 5 a.doc   Page 5 of 5 
 

interconnection at the wastewater control building was also completed without incident, avoiding numerous 
water, sewer, and power lines. 
 
The  next  step  is  to  install  the  electrical  conduits  for  the  power  runs  between  the  switchgear  panels  and 
transformers and  then pour  concrete pads  for  the panels and  to pull and  terminate wiring. SMUD has not 
provided a date for the delivery of the new transformer or running of the new power feed yet. At this point it 
is anticipated that the project may be online by the end of October 2016. 
 
Water Treatment Plant Site 
Solar City  anticipates  receiving  a  permit  from  Sacramento County  to  allow  them  to  proceed  at  the Water 
Treatment  Plant  Site  beginning  next week.  The  District  has  notified  Aspen  Environmental  of  the  possible 
construction  start  as  it may  be  necessary  to  conduct  a  nesting  bird  and  Swainson  hawk  survey  prior  to 
beginning construction activity. 
 
Midge Fly Ad Hoc Committee 
Director Ferraro gave a brief update on the Midge Fly Ad Hoc Committee. The Committee wishes to continue 
meeting  through  the end of next  year. Director  Ferraro  recommended  the Committee end  at  this  time  as 
originally agreed and if needed next season, the Committee can meet again. By consensus, the Board agreed.  
 
Director Martel commented on his feeling that the District needs to be applying the same type treatments to 
all the areas in the community, not just Laguna Joaquin. Director Martel also commented on how he feels that 
the District is not following the Reclaimed Water Regulations and wants the Board to review those regulations 
at the September Board meeting.  
 
21. CONSIDER CONFERENCE/EDUCATION OPPORTUNITIES 
No discussion.  
 
22. REVIEW MEETING DATES/TIMES 
Director Graf will be out of town the beginning of September. 
 
Director Ferraro will be out of town the beginning of October.  
 
23. COMMENTS/SUGGESTIONS – BOARD MEMBERS AND STAFF 
Director Ferraro  thanked Paul Siebensohn  for all  the work his  staff does and  thanked Chief Wagner  for his 
service to the community.  
 
Darlene  J. Thiel Gillum stated she will be on vacation August 18 – 22, 2016. Paul Siebensohn will be Acting 
General Manager while she is gone. 
 
24. ADJOURNMENT 
Motion/Ferraro  to  adjourn  at  6:20  p.m.  Second/Graf.  Ayes:  Pasek,  Ferraro,  Graf, Martel.  Noes:  None. 
Absent: Pecotich. Abstain: None.     
 

Respectfully submitted, 
 
 

Suzanne Lindenfeld 
District Secretary 



 

Z:\Board\Board Packets\2016 Board Packets\09‐21‐2016 Board Packet\agenda 5 b.doc      Page 1 of 2 
 

MEMORANDUM 

Date:  September 2, 2016 

To:  Board of Directors 

From:  Security Committee Staff 

Subject:  September 2, 2016 Security Committee Meeting 
 

 
1.  CALL TO ORDER 
Director Ferraro called the meeting to order at 8:30 a.m. Present were Directors Ferraro and Martel. Present 
from District staff were Darlene Thiel Gillum, General Manager; Paul Wagner, Security Chief; Eric Thompson, 
Controller; and Suzanne Lindenfeld, District Secretary.  
 

2.   COMMENTS FROM THE PUBLIC 
None.  
 

3.  MONTHLY UPDATES 
Operations 
New Gate Officer started August 20, 2016 and  is doing an excellent  job. She  is an excellent addition  to  the 
team.  
 
Patrol Officer  Interviews were held and a candidate has been made an offer of employment. He has many 
years of Law Enforcement as a Police Officer in the Central Valley as well as Security Supervisor experience. He 
will start his training September 17, 2016. 
 
Purchase of a new District Patrol Vehicle (Jeep Patriot) has been completed. The signage and equipment are in 
the process of being installed.   
 
After some research and consideration regarding the use and authority for amber  lights to be mounted and 
displayed, Chief Wagner found that there is a Vehicle Code Section that does apply to the District having them, 
thus legally allowing their use. Vehicle Code Section 25277 states: 
 

Any  vehicle  used  by  any  police  department,  sheriff's  office,  or  other  governmental  agency  for  the 
purpose of enforcing parking  laws contained  in the Vehicle Code or  in a  local ordinance or regulation 
may display flashing or revolving amber warning  lights to the front, sides, or rear of the vehicle when 
actually engaged  in the enforcement of such  laws and when either necessarily stopped on a street, or 
when moving at a speed slower than the normal flow of traffic. 

 
This code section was forwarded to District Council, Richard Shanahan, who stated in an email, “Section 25277 
is a good find. The District is a government agency and, as you explain, the District from time to time enforces 
parking laws. Additionally, the Community Services District Law contains a special provision that authorizes the 
District  to  enforce  the  homeowners  association  CCRs  (Govt.  Code  §  61105(e))  and  the  RMA  CCRs  include 
parking  regulations  and  restrictions.  I  concur  that  section  25277  applies  to  the  District  for  the  parking 
enforcement‐related purposes described  in the statute and that  it provides authority to  justify and authorize 
the existence of the light bar on the security vehicles.” 
 



 

Z:\Board\Board Packets\2016 Board Packets\09‐21‐2016 Board Packet\agenda 5 b.doc      Page 2 of 2 
 

Incidents of Note 
Chief Wagner gave a brief overview of the incidents of note for August 2016. 
 
RMA Citations/Admonishments  
No discussion. 
 
Rancho Murieta Association Compliance/Grievance/Safety Committee Meeting 
The meeting is scheduled for September 12, 2016.  
 
Security Data Update 
All of the security data update forms have been sent out and almost all of them have been returned. Staff is in 
the process of inputting the information into the system (ABDI) and should be done soon.  
 
Incident Map and Emergency Exit Map  
Chief Wagner is still in the process of creating and finalizing the emergency map as well as the incident map. 
   
5.  REVIEW SECURITY IMPACT FEE POLICY 
Darlene J. Thiel Gillum gave a brief summary of the draft Security  Impact Fee Policy for the  implementation 
and use of the Security Impact Fee funds. The Security Impact Fee is defined and authorized for collection in 
the  670  Financing  and  Services  Agreement  (FSA)  and  the  Rancho North  FSA.  The  District  has  started  the 
collection of  this  fee and currently has $30,314  in  the  fund. This policy needs  to be approved and adopted 
prior to expending any of the Security Impact Fee funds. The first proposed project for the use if these funds is 
the  consulting  engagement  for  the  evaluation  of  the  Security Department  organization  and  design  of  the 
proposed surveillance camera system. This  item will be on  the District’s September 21, 2016 Regular Board 
meeting agenda.  
 
7.  DIRECTOR & STAFF COMMENTS 
No comments.  
 
8.  ADJOURNMENT 
The meeting adjourned at 9:09 a.m. 
 













Z:\Board\Board Packets\2016 Board Packets\09-21-2016 Board Packet\agenda 6 a.doc   1 

MEMORANDUM 
 

Date:    September 16, 2016 

To:    Board of Directors 

From:    Darlene J. Thiel, General Manager 

Subject:  General Manager’s Report 
 

 
Following are highlights since our last Board Meeting: 
 
FINANCE 
Larry Bain and a couple of auditing staff were onsite September 6 through September 9, 2016 to perform the 
audit  fieldwork. Mr. Bain anticipates coming back onsite  for an additional half day  to complete  some audit 
work  for  the  District  and  for  the  CFD  2014‐1.  Due  to  some  changes  in  how  PERS  prepared  the GASB  68 
actuarial  reports  related  to  pension  liabilities  for  pooled  agencies,  the  draft  audit  reports  previously 
anticipated to be ready for the October Finance Committee, may be delayed. 
 
COUNTY STAKEHOLDER MEETINGS 
No word yet  regarding  the  schedule  for  the  fifth  (5th) County Stakeholder Meeting  regarding  the proposed 
Rancho North development. 
 
DISTRICT ELECTION – CANDIDATES NIGHT 
The moderator for our Candidates Night scheduled for October 13, 2016 will be a student from California State 
University  –  Sacramento.  I  am  working  with  the  Associated  Students  Office  of  Governmental  Affairs  in 
coordinating  the  volunteer  student’s  schedule.  I  think  this  is  a  great  opportunity  to  provide  valuable 
experience to a student interested in communications, political science, and the election process.  
 
TOWN HALL MEETING ‐ SECURITY 
No specifics to report on this as of yet. 
 
PERSONNEL 
Security is fully staffed with the hiring of a new Patrol Office, Steve Egesdal, who started on September 17. 
 
Utility Worker, Michael McIntosh, has submitted his resignation notice effective September 23. Michael has 
accepted a position with El Dorado Irrigation District.  Debby has posted the open position in the Sacramento 
Bee, on our website, and on the Administration Building bulletin board. 
 
REGIONAL WATER AUTHORITY – REGIONAL WATER RELIABILITY PLAN PROJECT 
I have entered  into an agreement with the Regional Water Authority (RWA) for the District to participate  in 
their  Regional Water  Reliability  Plan  Project.  The  cost  of  our  participation  is  $1,200  for  phase  1  and  an 
additional  $800  for  phase  2  (a  total  not  to  exceed  amount  of  $2,000)  if  other  funding  sources  do  not 
materialize  before  July  1,  2017.  The  benefit  gained  from  the  District’s  participation  in  this  project  is  the 
identification  of  water  supply  vulnerabilities,  identification  of  mitigation  and  response  actions,  and 
development of an  implementation roadmap for a very  low cost  investment. The outcome from this project 
can  be  used  as  the  needs  assessment  in  the  pursuit  of  future  funding  for  implementation  of  identified 
mitigation and response actions. 
 



z:\board\board packets\2016 board packets\09-21-2016 board packet\agenda 6 a.doc 2

NEW EMAIL SIGN‐UP FEATURE ON DISTRICT WEBSITE 
Suzanne has  implemented a new  feature on our District website  for residents or other  interested parties to 
sign up/register to receive District news updates. This feature is provided by Streamline (host of our website) 
free of charge for up to 2,000 registered email accounts. 
 



MEMORANDUM 
 
Date:  September 14, 2016 

To:    Board of Directors 

From:    Eric Thompson, Controller 

Subject:    Administration / Financial Reports 

 
Enclosed  is  a  combined  financial  summary  report  for  August  2016.  Following  are  highlights  from  various 
internal  financial reports. Please  feel  free to call me before the Board meeting regarding any questions you 
may have relating to these reports.   
 
This information is provided to the Board to assist in answering possible questions regarding under or over‐
budget items. In addition, other informational items of interest are included. 
 
Water Consumption ‐ Listed below are year‐to‐date water consumption numbers using weighted averages: 
 

 12 month 
rolling % 
increase 

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun 

Residences 0.6% 2,524 2,531           

 Weighted 
average 

Jul Aug Sep Oct Nov Dec Jan Feb Mar Apr May Jun 

Cubic Feet 2,517 2,489 2,545           

Gallons per 
day 

  628   621   635           

Planning 
Usage GPD    583 

            

 
 
Lock‐Offs – For the month of August, there were 18 lock‐offs. 
 
Connection Fees – There were no new connection fees received in August. 
 
Aging  Report  –  Delinquent  accounts  totaled  $62,670  which  was  10.1%  of  the  total  accounts  receivable 
balance of $618,606. Past due receivables decreased 39.6% or $41,018 from the prior month. This decrease is 
due primarily to the receivables transferred to Sacramento County for collection under the Teeter plan. 
  
Summary  of Reserve Accounts  as  of August  31,  2016  –  The District’s  reserve  accounts  increased  $46,929 
during the month of August and have  increased $126,834 since the beginning of the  fiscal year. Other than 
normal inter‐fund borrowing repayments and reserve account funding, the only other transaction in reserves 
this month was  an  $8,000  transfer  for  the  down  payment  of  a  new  security  vehicle.  The  total  amount  of 
reserves  held  by  the District  on August  31,  2016 was  $4,914,756.  See  the  table  below  for  information  by 
specific reserve account. 
     



Reserve Fund Balances 
 

 

Reserve Descriptions 

Fiscal Yr Beg  
Balance 

July 1, 2016 

YTD Collected & 
Interest Earned 

YTD Spent Period End 
Balance 
Aug 31, 2016 

Water Capital Replacement (200-2505) 826,443 35,591 (0) 862,034 

Sewer Capital Replacement (250-2505) 1,915,904 59,761 (0) 1,975,665 

Drainage Capital Replacement (260-2505) 71,601 1,946 (0) 73,547 

Security Capital Replacement (500-2505) 90,972 7,613 (12,786) 85,799 

Admin Capital Replacement (xxx-2505-99) 57,174 0 (0) 57,174 

Sewer Capital Improvement Connection (250-2500) 4,045 0 (0) 4,045 

Capital Improvement (xxx-2510) 331,445 5,485 (0) 336,930 

Water Supply Augmentation (200-2511) 1,758,673 13,821 (0) 1,772,494 

WTP Construction Fund Reserve (200-2513) 

Security Impact Fee Reserves (500-2513) 

(281,547) 

13,214 

31,243 

17,100 

(32,942) 

(0) 

(283,246) 

30,314 

Total Reserves 4,787,924 172,560 (45,728) 4,914,756 

 
Inter‐fund Borrowing Balances 
 

 

Inter-fund Borrowing 

Fiscal Yr Beg  
Balance 

July 1, 2016 

 

YTD Interest 

             
YTD 

Repayment 

Period End 
Balance 
Aug 31, 2016 

Sewer Loan to WTP Construction Fund 1,277,709 1,274 (24,706) 1,254,277 

WSA Loan to WTP Construction Fund 425,903 425 (8,235) 418,093 

N. Gate Security Loan from Drainage Fund 86,039 85 (3,891) 82,233 

Total Inter-fund Borrowing 1,789,651 1,784 (36,832) 1,754,603 

 
PARS GASB 45 Trust ‐ The PARS GASB 45 Trust, which is the investment trust established to fund Other Post 
Employment Benefits, had the following returns: 

                   Period ended July 31, 2016 

1‐Month  3‐Months  1‐Year 

2.57%  4.89%  3.82% 
 
 

Financial Summary Report (year‐to‐date through August 31, 2016) 
Revenues:  

Water Charges, year‐to‐date, are above budget $35,327 or 8.7% 

Sewer Charges, year‐to‐date, are below budget $1,440 or (0.7%) 

Drainage Charges, year‐to‐date, are below budget $212 or (0.7%) 



Security Charges, year‐to‐date, are below budget $1,250 or (0.6%) 

Solid Waste Charges, year‐to‐date, are above budget $273 or 0.3% 

Total  Revenue, which  includes  other  income,  property  taxes,  and  interest  income  year‐to‐date,  is  above 
budget $44,558 or 4.1% (Water Conservation Efforts  ‐ YTD residential water usage  is up 12.5% compared to 
budget). 
 
Expenses: Year‐to‐date total operating expenses are below budget $104,571 or (10.7%). There have been no 
operational  reserve  expenditures  so  far  this  year. Operational  reserve  expenditures  cover  projects  funded 
from reserves which are also recorded as operational expenses through the income statement as required by 
Generally Accepted Accounting Principles (GAAP). 
 
Water Expenses (including wages & employer costs) year‐to‐date, are below budget $31,795 or (10.0%).  The 
Water Department saw savings across most expense categories so far this year.  Only wages, employer costs, 
and  taste & odor chemicals were above budget.   The  largest savings were seen  in  the  following categories:  
power, meters/boxes;  repairs & maintenance;  hazardous waste  removal,  consulting,  legal,  and  equipment 
rental. 
 
Sewer Expenses, year‐to‐date, are below budget by $45,981 or (26.8%). Savings were seen across most sewer 
expense categories, with the largest savings being seen in salaries & wages, employer costs, chemicals, repairs 
& maintenance,  consulting,  legal,  and  training.    Sewer wages were  under  budget  29.8%  due  to  personnel 
being allocated more to the Water Department during the month. 
  
Drainage Expenses, year‐to‐date, are below budget by $7,361 or  (33.7%). Year‐to‐date wages & employer 
costs are below budget $2,029 for the same allocation reason mentioned above.  Additional savings were seen 
in repairs & maintenance, chemicals, consulting, and improvements. 
 
Combined Water/Sewer/Drainage Wages & Employer Costs, year‐to‐date, are below budget by $5,177 or 
(2.5%).  Utility  personnel  at  the  District  allocate  their  time  between  the  Water,  Sewer  and  Drainage 
departments as needed and as directed.  This section is being reported to help gauge overall utility personnel 
expenses versus budget. 
 
Security Expenses, year‐to‐date, are below budget by $8,372 or  (4.6%). The  security department has  seen 
savings  in wages, employer costs, vehicle maintenance, equipment repairs, bar codes, and office supplies so 
far this fiscal year. 
 
Solid Waste Expenses, year‐to‐date, are above budget by $608 or 0.6%.  Solid waste revenues and expenses 
are both slightly over budget through the end of August. 
 
General  Expenses,  year‐to‐date,  are below budget by  $11,670 or  (6.4%).    Savings were  seen  across most 
expense  categories  so  far  this  year, with  the  biggest  savings  being  in  salaries & wages,  director meeting 
payments,  employer  costs,  consulting,  and  office  supplies.    Insurance  and  legal  expenses were  the Admin 
Department’s biggest line items that were over‐budget. 
 
Net  Income:  Year‐to‐date  unadjusted  net  income,  before  depreciation,  is  $255,684  versus  a  budget  of 
$106,555. Net income/(Loss) adjusted for estimated depreciation expense is $68,055.  The full‐year expected 
net operating income (loss) before depreciation, per the 2016‐2017 budget is ($110). 











Change Order Detail

Shared Cost Change Orders (Split between CSD/CFD#1/CFD2014-1):

Completed (Shared) Change Orders:
# Status Description Amt Remaining

0.028 COMPLETE Bid Div 28 SCADA console Allowance 1,738$             -$                
1 COMPLETE Remove proj contigency from trade contr -$                 
2 COMPLETE JDP - Drying bed extension shotcrete 5,648$             -$                
3 COMPLETE KGW/JDP - FM change of material 2,888$             -$                
4 COMPLETE JDP - 2" Conduit for Fiber 26,264$          -$                
5 COMPLETE JDP - CLSM trench at lower yard 3,300$             -$                
6 COMPLETE JDP - drying bed clean out 1,882$             -$                
7 COMPLETE Boring of 2" FM (IBA) -$                 -$                
8 COMPLETE RFI #024, replace corroded FCA 6,623$             -$                
9 COMPLETE RFI #009, TW Booster pump station slab 6,029$             -$                

10 COMPLETE ASI #01, check valve/concrete fillet 7,018$             -$                
11 COMPLETE NAOH added slab at tank yard 4,091$             -$                
14 COMPLETE RFI #28, conduit & chem trench vault conflict 11,700$          -$                
15 COMPLETE SWPPP Maintenance -$                 -$                
16 COMPLETE 16" Water Main Repair 7,000$             -$                
17 COMPLETE Addl gunite for drying bed extension 2,946$             -$                
18 COMPLETE KGW - Door 302 added lockset 345$                -$                
19 COMPLETE Zenon - GE dimension Clar.Support Grate 2,815$             -$                
21 COMPLETE RFI #19, Transformer Relocation 1,542$             -$                
22 COMPLETE Unsuitable soil delays 17,041$          -$                
23 COMPLETE Temp Power Switchover 3,070$             -$                
24 DELETION RFI #024, deleted ARV at sta 227+47 (5,008)$           -$                
26 COMPLETE SWPPP Maintenance -$                 -$                
27 DELETION Upper Tank Yard Pad Prep (492)$               -$                
30 COMPLETE RFI #060, relocate 12" line for stair conflt 1,725$             -$                
35 COMPLETE RFI #041, CIP Line Relocation 5,561$             -$                
36 COMPLETE GE Upgraded Maintenance Table 5,013$             -$                
38 COMPLETE CIP Heater Control MCC 4,415$             -$                
39 COMPLETE FS Structural Consulting 1,093$             -$                
40 COMPLETE Additional Spare Parts 2,600$             -$                
42 COMPLETE RFI#043.1 Flocculation covers 29,745$          -$                
43 COMPLETE RCMS Trailer Power Hookup -$                 -$                
44 COMPLETE Temp 3" & 4" hot tap at 16" TW 8,794$             -$                
45 COMPLETE 1" Motorized ball valves for chlorination equip 5,306$             -$                
46 COMPLETE Temp Lab Water Connection (Operations Expense) 4,501$             -$                
47 COMPLETE Generator Pad Size Changes 8,317$             -$                
49 COMPLETE ASI#03 additional eyewash/shower in basin 1,855$             -$                
52 COMPLETE BWW & reject Flow Meters 26,653$          -$                
57 COMPLETE SWPPP Maintenance -$                 -$                

58/180 COMPLETE Temp Filter Trailer Connections (Operations Expense) 94,781$          -$                
60 COMPLETE AER (E) Fan Demo and Plywood Vents 5,860$             -$                
61 COMPLETE Clay Pipe at pump station 6,487$             -$                
62 COMPLETE Unsuitable material under pump station 6,124$             -$                
63 COMPLETE R&R Siding at West Side Plant 1 2,120$             -$                
64 COMPLETE Additional Painting Control Room Ceiling & Walls 2,230$             -$                
65 DELETION Delete control panels & VFD for KGW pumps (9,300)$           -$                
67 COMPLETE Dewatering for FM at front of plant 567$                -$                
69 COMPLETE RFI #084, Pump Station Bar Beams 286$                -$                
70 DELETION Paint (E) Chlorine Room 3,280$             -$                

Q:\Board Reports\2016-2017\02-WTP Construction Cost Summary Aug 2016 1



# Status Description Amt Remaining

72 COMPLETE Modify Crane Stops 4,700$             -$                
75 COMPLETE RFI#037, chemical conduit trench pathway 38,430$          -$                
81 COMPLETE Lightpole at Pump Station 4,104$             -$                
83 COMPLETE Wall opening at backwash basins 4,939$             -$                
86 COMPLETE Pipe gallery valves and bolts replacement 5,360$             -$                
87 DELETION Reverse CE#70 paint (E) chlorine room (3,280)$           -$                
89 COMPLETE RFI#102 Underdrain wall elevation descrpancy 1,240$             -$                
90 COMPLETE 2" FM ARV at septic tank 1,483$             -$                
93 COMPLETE Concrete fillet at backwash basin conflick with ladder 659$                -$                
94 COMPLETE RFI#081 Waterstop at wet well 1,185$             -$                
95 COMPLETE TW bell restrain 549$                -$                
97 COMPLETE Slide Gates at flocc basin 10,328$          -$                
98 COMPLETE Clean CCT basin 9,946$             -$                
99 COMPLETE Grating at overflow channel 4,976$             -$                

100 COMPLETE Cable Tray rack in basin (power & signal) 1,823$             -$                
102 COMPLETE IP camera upgrade 456$                -$                
106 COMPLETE Flocculator surrounding concreete uneven 3,966$             -$                
107 COMPLETE Modify flocculation covers for relocated slide gates 4,025$             -$                
114 COMPLETE Flocc motor power/signal conduit 12,533$          -$                
115 COMPLETE Phone line from (e) termination board to (N) PLC 3,417$             -$                
116 COMPLETE Generator Slab duck bank conflict 425$                -$                
117 COMPLETE RFI#122 Chemical injectors 2,829$             -$                
118 COMPLETE Temp Filter Trailer Disassembly 2,627$             -$                
119 COMPLETE Handrail extension 1,247$             -$                
120 COMPLETE Generator control peripheral module 2,791$             -$                
121 COMPLETE RFI#110 safety air exhaust valves 1,724$             -$                
122 COMPLETE Plug holes at feed channel pvc 2,142$             -$                
125 COMPLETE RFI#145 gable end canopy supports 11,425$          -$                
127 COMPLETE Metal studs attachment to structure 19,148$          -$                
129 COMPLETE RFI#139 ACH & CLS chemical diffusers 1,612$             -$                
132 COMPLETE Replace siding ancillary room & flocc basin 3,680$             -$                
133 COMPLETE RFI#133 RW sample pump 4,119$             -$                
134 COMPLETE Retaining Wall at pipe gallery 1,467$             -$                
135 COMPLETE ASI#03 HCL acid fume scrubber 1,701$             -$                
136 COMPLETE RFI#144 Neutralization tank LIT connection 916$                -$                
138 COMPLETE Future pump pad 1,349$             -$                
139 COMPLETE TWPS hatch drain relocation 516$                -$                
140 COMPLETE Membrane covers modify attachment 2,504$             -$                
144 COMPLETE Collapsed shoring hole at TWBPS 3,209$             -$                
145 COMPLETE Unload & reorganize filters 2,630$             -$                
146 COMPLETE Overflow through equip blockout 989$                -$                
148 COMPLETE Replace lamps of (E) light poles with LED 2,531$             -$                
151 COMPLETE RFI#130.1 Modify control room ductwork 2,024$             -$                
152 COMPLETE Field fabricate weir for TWBPS 929$                -$                
153 COMPLETE Plant 2 at (E) doorway dryrot (Operations Expense) 2,020$             -$                
154 COMPLETE Plant 1 siding dryrot at roof line & control room window 6,005$             -$                
155 COMPLETE Air compressor switching panel 3,664$             -$                
156 COMPLETE 2" bulkhead fitting at upper tank yard 841$                -$                
158 COMPLETE ZO & LAC lines relocated 2,257$             -$                
159 COMPLETE Replacement of 12" FCA in pipe gallery 8,129$             -$                
160 COMPLETE Relocate SCADA server to hallway 2,195$             -$                
166 COMPLETE Chemical pipe enclosures 932$                -$                
167 COMPLETE Access hatch hold opens 1,033$             -$                
168 COMPLETE ASI#2 added backpulse LIT 12,224$          -$                

Q:\Board Reports\2016-2017\02-WTP Construction Cost Summary Aug 2016 2



# Status Description Amt Remaining

169 COMPLETE Add room id signage per submittal 758$                -$                
171 COMPLETE Interconnect to district internet 1,165$             -$                
172 COMPLETE RFI#168 RW pipe encasement & slab modification 10,212$          -$                
174 COMPLETE Additional control wires to plate settler 899$                -$                
175 COMPLETE RFI#149 PD line routing modification 5,662$             -$                
176 COMPLETE RFI#098 Heat Trace TWBPS 12,880$          -$                
177 COMPLETE Relocate RW cyanometer 4,477$             -$                
178 COMPLETE Temp piping for comissioning 1,697$             -$                
181 COMPLETE ASI#02 piping changes to system 20,066$          -$                
182 COMPLETE 20-FV-350 control wires to LCP-CON-1002 1,517$             -$                
183 COMPLETE TW Sample Line 1,263$             -$                
184 COMPLETE Temp CL bypass 408$                -$                
185 COMPLETE RFI#175 High level alarm in sump pump 8,186$             -$                
187 COMPLETE CIP heater relay box relocation 3,624$             -$                
188 COMPLETE NaOH tank heat trace panel 2,824$             -$                
189 COMPLETE Blower flow switch 24V POWER 1,446$             -$                
190 COMPLETE Lower yard vermin hole exposed during pave prep 1,500$             -$                
191 COMPLETE Screens at flash mix overflow 652$                -$                
192 COMPLETE AIT-PH-1750, AIT-PH-101 CIF pump signal to GE Panel 3,207$             -$                
194 COMPLETE Membrane filter installation 6,923$             -$                
195 COMPLETE RFI#1181 relocate feed channel LIT 1,008$             -$                
196 COMPLETE RFI#180 Existing pipe gallery sump 1,090$             -$                
197 COMPLETE Relocate backpulse LIT 952$                -$                
203 COMPLETE Extra Excavation for 18" FLT tie in 4,785$             -$                
213 COMPLETE Owner Directed Change Order contingency reimbursemen 150,243$        -$                

796,570$        -$                 

Non-Completed (Shared) Change Orders:
# Status Description Amt Remaining

179 APPROVED Bird netting at canopy 28,051$          28,051$         
207 APPROVED Owner Change Order #17 Offset (50,241)$         (38,047)$        
157 APPROVED Ancillary room (E) soffit opening infill 2,390$             2,390$            

(19,800)$         (7,606)$           

CSD-Only Change Orders:

Completed (CSD-Only) Change Orders:
# Status Description Amt Remaining

25 COMPLETE Drying Bed cleanout and sand infill (CSD only) 13,482$          -$                
34 COMPLETE Plant 2 SLC Ethernet connection (CSD only) 8,527$             -$                
12 COMPLETE Siding Replacement-Hardie Board (CSD only) 91,466$          -$                

113,475$        -$                 

Non-Completed (CSD-Only) Change Orders:
# Status Description Amt Remaining

Q:\Board Reports\2016-2017\02-WTP Construction Cost Summary Aug 2016 3



Period ending:  August 31, 2016

HARD CONSTRUCTION COSTS (via Roebbelen)

Contractor Work Type
Contract 
Amount % Billed to Date

Amount Billed 
to Date

Amount Billed 
This Month

Contract 
Amount 

Remaining
CSD           

$4.358 million
R&B LOC  

$4.136 million

CFD 2014    
$3.818m Ph 1   
$0.540m Ph 2

Roebbelen Construction Management  Services General Conditions 781,205            100% 778,393          5,000              2,812              283,343         249,361         245,689         

River City Painting Painting 291,000            100% 291,000          -                  -                  108,803         84,454           97,744           

GE Technology Membrane Supplier 2,173,800         100% 2,173,800       -                  -                  776,751         713,767         683,282         

JD Pasquetti Sitework 555,659            100% 555,659          -                  -                  315,436         117,474         122,749         

Roebbelen Construction Fencing 53,640               100% 53,640            -                  -                  43,254           5,402              4,984              

KG Walters Construction Mechanical & Plumbing 4,893,000         100% 4,893,000       -                  -                  1,768,515      1,578,949      1,545,537      

Bockmon & Woody Electric Electrical 2,370,266         100% 2,369,266       4,000              1,000              846,761         782,171         740,334         

Marquee Fire Protection 42,500               100% 42,500            -                  -                  20,319           2,142              20,039           

Contract Changes Hardie Board, Temp Filtration, Bird Netting, 483,136            94% 455,086          150,243         28,051           304,843         -                  -                  
Taxes, Etc.

Total Construction Contracts (with 534,318 Contingency = 11,911,705) 11,644,206         100% 11,612,344     159,243           31,863             4,468,025        3,533,719        3,460,357        

APPROVED CHANGE ORDERS:
Max Contract Change Order Amount 534,318            

Shared Completed Change Orders (Invoiced/Paid) 534,502            261,218         109,130         164,153         
CSD Only Completed Change Orders (Invoiced/Paid)* 26,510               26,510           

Approved Change Orders (Not Invoiced) (35,657)             

Total Completed/Approved CO 525,355              

Amount CO remaining 8,963                 

PROPOSED CHANGE ORDERS: -                     

Amount CO remaining 8,963                 
(if Proposed COs are approved)

OTHER:
Bay Area  Coating Consulting Services **Contigency amt outside of Roebbelen 

contract (approved BOD 11/19/15)
15,000                 91% 13,622             -                    1,378                4,822                4,577                4,223                

Sholl Construction **Membrane Sealing contingency amt oustide 
of Roebbelen contract

4,576                   100% 4,576                -                    -                        1,620                1,538                1,419                

*  CSD Only Change Orders are in addition to the CSD share of $4.358m

Total Adjusted Construction Contracts (hard costs + CO's) 12,189,137         Total Billed to Date 4,762,195        3,648,964        3,630,152        

Project Construction Summary Source of Funding

Change Order Summary

Q:\Board Reports\2016-2017\02-WTP Construction Cost Summary Aug 2016 1 Report Date: 9/13/2016



SOFT CONSTRUCTION COSTS (CSD Direct Expenses to be shared equally)

Item Company/Agency
Estimated Soft 

Cost
Contract/Actual 

Soft Cost
Amount Billed 

to Date
Amount Billed 

This Month

Contract 
Amount 

Remaining
CSD           

$4.358 million
R&B LOC  

$4.136 million

CFD 2014    
$3.818m Ph 1   
$0.540m Ph 2

Preconstruction CM Assistance Roebbelen CMS 49,049               49,049               49,049            -                  -                  17,363           16,480           15,205           

Design Engineering HDR  Engineering 240,000            239,982            239,982          -                  -                  239,982         
CEQA NOI/MND HDR  Engineering 40,000               71,070               63,559            -                  7,511              5,583              53,088           4,889              
Design Geotech Youngdahl and Associates 3,000                 2,600                 2,600               -                  -                  920                 874                 806                 

Construction Engineering Assistance HDR Engineering 150,000            276,328            276,324          -                  4                     110,247         78,243           87,834           

Special Construction Inspection Youngdahl and Associates 50,000               48,603               48,167            -                  436                 17,547           15,292           15,328           

Misc Fees 709                  -                  -                  251                 238                 220                 
SMUD  Service SMUD 5,000                 31,632               31,632            -                  -                  11,198           10,628           9,806              
Generator Permit Sac County Air Quality Mgmt 5,000                 5,000                 -                   -                  5,000              -                  -                  
State Clearinghouse for CEQA State of CA 3,000                 3,000                 -                   -                  3,000              -                  -                  
Fish & Wildlife Agency Permits State of CA 2,000                 2,000                 921                  -                  1,079              326                 310                 286                 
Ca Dept Health Review State of CA 5,000                 5,000                 -                   -                  5,000              -                  -                  
Road Mitigation RMA 8,000                 12,000               12,000            -                  -                  4,248              4,032              3,720              

CSD Admin, Legal and Engineering CSD 50,000               50,000               275,678          -                  -                  157,710         67,968           50,000           
(CFD 2014 Max per FSA = $50K)

Total 610,049            796,264            1,000,621       -                  22,030           325,393         487,135         188,093         

Grand Total (Construction and soft costs) 12,974,788       13,192,175    
*See Note

Total Hard/Soft Costs 5,087,588 4,136,099 3,818,245

Total Retainage to Date: 171,186 Less: Funds Received (4,136,099) (3,818,245)

Note: Pending Draw Request 0 0

Total Outstanding Amount 0 0

**CFD 2014-1 Draw Amount Based on Cashflow per FSA

  -- As of February 29, 2016, CFD 2014-1 funding cap had been reached.

Additional Info

Service Cost Summary Source of Funding

  -- As of September 30, 2015, R&B LOC funding cap had been reached.

Q:\Board Reports\2016-2017\02-WTP Construction Cost Summary Aug 2016 2 Report Date: 9/13/2016



 

 
z:\board\board packets\2016 board packets\09-21-2016 board packet\agenda 6 c.doc 
 
 P a g e  | 1   

MEMORANDUM 
 

 

Date:    September 12, 2016 

To:    Board of Directors 

From:    Paul Wagner, Security Chief 

Subject:  Security Report for the Month of August 2016 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

OPERATIONS  
The  new Gate Officer  started  on  August  20,  2016  and  is  doing  an  excellent  job.  I  believe  she will  be  an 
excellent addition to the team.  
 
Patrol Officer  interviews were held and a candidate has been made an offer of employment. He has many 
years of law enforcement as a police officer in the Central Valley as well as security supervisor experience. He 
will start his training September 17, 2016. 
 
Purchase of a new District patrol vehicle (Jeep Patriot). The signage and equipment are in the process of being 
installed. Once the new vehicle has been signed, the “old” Patriot will be taken to the company that  installs 
the radio equipment and lights. In turn, once that vehicle has been completed, the new vehicle will have the 
equipment installed. I expect both new vehicles will be fully patrol ready within 2‐3 weeks.  
 
After some research and consideration regarding the use and authority for amber  lights to be mounted and 
displayed, we have come to the conclusion that there is a Vehicle Code Section that does apply to the District 
having them, thus legally allowing their use. Vehicle Code Section 25277 states: 
 

Any  vehicle  used  by  any  police  department,  sheriff's  office,  or  other  governmental  agency  for  the 
purpose of enforcing parking  laws contained  in the Vehicle Code or  in a  local ordinance or regulation 
may display flashing or revolving amber warning  lights to the front, sides, or rear of the vehicle when 
actually engaged  in the enforcement of such  laws and when either necessarily stopped on a street, or 
when moving at a speed slower than the normal flow of traffic. 

 
I  forwarded  this section  to District Council, Richard Shanahan, who agreed with my  finding. He stated  in an 
email, “Section 25277 is a good find. The District is a government agency and, as you explain, the District from 
time  to  time  enforces  parking  laws.  Additionally,  the  Community  Services  District  Law  contains  a  special 
provision that authorizes the District to enforce the homeowners association CCRs (Govt. Code § 61105(e)) and 
the RMA CCRs  include parking regulations and restrictions.  I concur that section 25277 applies to the District 
for the parking enforcement‐related purposes described in the statute and that it provides authority to justify 
and authorize the existence of the light bar on the security vehicles.” 
 
I have  an existing quote  from  “Emergency Vehicles Outfitters”  in Elk Grove  for  the  complete  install of  the 
radios/light bar and equipment for each of the new Patriots at $2,814 per vehicle.  I estimate that each  light 
bar ($1,100 included in the estimate) will last approximately 10 years of service and several patrol vehicles and 
can be removed and installed on new vehicles.  



 

 
z:\board\board packets\2016 board packets\09-21-2016 board packet\agenda 6 c.doc 
 
 P a g e  | 2   

INCIDENTS OF NOTE  
August 2, assist at the Country Store for a stolen vehicle pulled over by California Highway Patrol (CHP). 
 
August  12,  domestic  incident  at  Country  Store  parking  lot. Male  and  female  argument with  both  parties 
separating and family picking up the female half from the store.  
 
August  20,  hit  and  run.  Unknown  vehicle  backed  into  victim’s  vehicle  in  driveway.  No  subject  vehicle 
information.  
 
August  22,  trespass  at  the Murieta Village  pool.  Resident was  notified  by management  regarding  revoked 
access of the common areas, and was inside the pool area. Subject was advised by Sergeant Scarzella and left. 
 
August 24, suspicious circumstance.    Intoxicated WFA attempted to enter a residence she thought was hers. 
The female was contacted by Security Patrol and became argumentative and slightly combative. Sacramento 
County  Sheriff’s  Department  (SSD)  was  called  and  took  the  WFA  into  custody  for  647  (f)  PC  (Public 
Intoxication).  
 
RANCHO MURIETA ASSOCIATION COMPLIANCE/GRIEVANCE/SAFETY COMMITTEE MEETING 
The meeting  is  scheduled  to  be  held  on  September  12,  2016.  I will  be  on  vacation  at  that  time,  however 
Sergeant Scarzella will attend.  
 
SECURITY DATA UPDATE 
All of the security data update forms have been sent out and we have received almost all of them back. We 
are in the process of inputting them into the system (ABDI) and should be done soon.  
 
INCIDENT MAP AND EMERGENCY EXIT MAP 
I am still in the process of creating and finalizing the emergency map as well as the incident map. The plan is to 
add an Incident Map and Emergency Exit Map to the District website. The Incident Map will show locations of 
incidents of note, such as  thefts and vandalism. This will help  track any patterns of  incidents  to help direct 
patrol resources to those areas. The Emergency Exit Map will show additional exit  locations, such as  locked 
gates,  that  could  allow  vehicle  traffic  out  of  the  North  and  South  residential  areas  in  the  event  of  an 
emergency. 
 



 

z:\board\board packets\2016 board packets\09-21-2016 board packet\agenda 6 d.docx  Page | 1 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
Date:    September 8, 2016 

To:    Board of Directors 

From:    Paul Siebensohn, Director of Field Operations 

Subject:  Water/Wastewater/Drainage Report 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 The following is information and projects staff has worked on since the last Board meeting. 
 
WATER 
Plant 1 (the ultrafiltration plant) is operating at 1.0 million gallons per day (mgd) and Plant 2 is operating at 1.0 
mgd to provide the District’s water needs, which recently averaged around 1.98 mgd. Water treatment plant 
production  flow  for  August  was  63,205,000  gallons  (194  acre‐feet).    Plant  2  is  continuing  to  operate  in 
conjunction with Plant 1 as testing of the SCADA control system of each facility continues. 
 
WATER SOURCE OF SUPPLY            
The  combined  raw water  storage  for  Calero,  Chesbro,  and  Clementia  Reservoirs,  on  September  7,  2016, 
measured approximately 1,284.2 MG  (3,941.4 AF) of which 1,120.3 MG  (3,438.3 AF)  is usable due  to dead 
storage. For Calero and Chesbro Reservoirs alone, the storage measured 988.7 MG (3,034.3 AF), or 939.3 MG 
(2,581.3 AF) usable. Rainfall  totaled 0.0” and evaporation measured 8.79”. Calero Reservoir was  treated  for 
algae prevention on August 16, 2016. Despite  the  seasonal warming of  the  reservoirs, algae and  taste and 
odor compounds from them have been under control and minimally detectable. 
 

Below is a graphical representation of the storage reservoir levels this year to date. 

 
 

CONSERVATION 
For August, water consumption was 8.7% less than in 2013 with a year to date savings average of 20.4%. The 
residential gallons per capita per day usage was at 296. 
 
 



 

z:\board\board packets\2016 board packets\09-21-2016 board packet\agenda 6 d.docx  Page | 2 

The US Drought Monitor graphic for California and Outlook for our area continues to show that the drought in 
our region persists and we remain in a severe drought. 
 

 
 
 

 
 

 
 



 

z:\board\board packets\2016 board packets\09-21-2016 board packet\agenda 6 d.docx  Page | 3 

 
WASTEWATER TREATMENT, COLLECTION AND RECLAMATION 
Influent wastewater  flow  averaged  0.35 million  gallons  a  day,  for  a  total  of  10.89 MG,  (33.4  AF).  This  is 
approximately 137 gpd per sewer connection. Secondary wastewater storage measured 39.2 MG  (120.4 AF) 
on September 7, 2016 of which 34.4 MG (105.4 acre‐feet) is usable volume. 
 
We delivered 33,089,000 gallons of recycled water to Rancho Murieta Country Club (RMCC) for their irrigation 
needs and 3,260,000 gallons to the Van Vleck Ranch for our disposal needs in August. 
 
The graph below shows where our secondary storage  is compared  to previous years, measured on  the  first 
Wednesday of each month. 
 

 
 
Maintenance this past month included repairing the West DAF recirculation pump #2, spraying weeds, cutting 
brush around the wastewater ponds and reservoirs, and pulling rags/debris out of Pond 1 aerators. 
 
SEWER COLLECTION 
Utility staff has used our CCTV camera to  inspect the sewer  lines along Domingo Drive, Domingo Court, and 
across the golf course Hole #17 over to Terreno Drive in Unit 2 as continued preventative maintenance. Staff is 



 

z:\board\board packets\2016 board packets\09-21-2016 board packet\agenda 6 d.docx  Page | 4 

in the process of cleaning those  lines as well. No sewer problems occurred  in the District’s system this past 
month. Staff did have one call out which turned out to be on the homeowner’s side. 
DRAINAGE 
Staff spent 77 hours continuing to cut vegetation in the drainage system in August, mainly in North drainage 
Zone 2, sections A, B, C, G, and H, from Puerto down to lower Guadalupe Drive. Staff also cut and sprayed the 
vegetation at  the basins at Bent Grass Court and Basin 5, and a drainage channel at Bermuda Court  in  the 
South community. 
 
Laguna Joaquin was treated  for algae around Rancho Murieta Association’s  (RMA)  intake, per their request. 
Staff removed previously sprayed aquatic primrose and picked up some trash from the shorelines as well. 
 
CIA DITCH 
The CIA ditch  flow  from  the Cosumnes River  is being shared between  the Hutchison and Schneider ranches 
and to the Anderson Ranch on alternating weeks, under riparian rights. 
 
WATER METERING AND UTILITY STAFF WORK 
Utility staff replaced fourteen (14) ¾” water meters and seven (7) 
water service lines this past month. Staff is proactively replacing 
service lines alongside lines that are leaking while the streets are 
open  in  the  area  to  allow  the  replacements  to  occur.  Also 
completed  were  fifty‐one  (51)  Utility  Star  work  orders  and 
twenty‐six  (26)  underground  service  alerts  (USAs)  that  were 
primarily requested by Greenfield Communications. 
 
Utility staff excavated around two (2) places on the old 12” sewer 
force main going up Stonehouse Road to prepare it to be tested 
for  its viability  for  future use. Parts  for  the  testing were special 
ordered due  to  the  infrequently used size  to accommodate  this 
old pipe.  Staff hopes  to begin  the  testing  as  soon  as  the parts 
arrive the week of September 12, 2016. 
 



   

Z:\Board\Board Packets\2016 Board Packets\09-21-2016 Board Packet\agenda 8 a.docx 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
Date:    September 12, 2016 

To:    Board of Directors 

From:    Security Committee Staff 

Subject:  Consider Adoption of District Policy P2016‐02, Implementation and Use of Security Impact Fees  
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Adopt District Policy P2016‐02, Implementation and Use of Security Impact Fees.  
 
BACKGROUND 

The attached is the first draft of the Security Impact Fee Policy for the implementation and use of the Security 
Impact Fee funds. The Security  Impact Fee  is defined and authorized for collection  in the 670 Financing and 
Services Agreement  (FSA) and  the Rancho North FSA. The District has  started  the collection of  this  fee and 
currently has $30,314  in the fund.   This policy needs to be approved and adopted prior to expending any of 
the  Security  Impact  Fee  funds.  The  first  proposed  project  for  the  use  of  these  funds  is  the  consulting 
engagement  for  the  evaluation  of  the  Security  Department  organization  and  design  of  the  proposed 
surveillance camera system. 
 
The Security Committee recommends adoption.  
 
 



 

Z:\Board\Board Packets\2016 Board Packets\09-21-2016 Board Packet\agenda 8 b.doc 1

RANCHO MURIETA COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 
 
 
Category: 

 
Financial 

 
Policy #P2016-02 

 
Title:              

 
Implementation and Use of Security Impact Fees 

 
 
PURPOSE 

The Rancho Murieta Community Services District (‘District’) Security Impact Fee policy is a 
financial policy that establishes the guidelines and parameters regarding the expenditure of the 
Security Impact Fees collected by the District as authorized in the following Financing and Services 
Agreements: 
 

1) dated May 27, 2014 with Cosumnes River Land, LLC, Murieta Industrial Park, 
LLC, Murieta Lakeside Properties, LLC, and Murieta Highlands, LLC (the 
‘Rancho North FSA’) and 
 

2) dated March 28, 2014 with CSGF Rancho Murieta, LLC (Residences East), BBC 
Murieta Land, LLC (Residences West), Murieta Retreats, LLC (Retreats), Elk 
Grove Bilby Partners, LP (Lakeview), and PCCP CSGF RB Portfolio, LLC 
(Riverview) (‘the 670 FSA’). 

 
 
POLICY 
 
1.0 Security Impact Fee  

The Security Impact Fee is collected at the time of water permit issue for all new 
development subject to the Rancho North FSA and the 670 FSA at the following rates: 
 
 Property outside of gates   $750 per lot (residential) 
       $750 per commercial/retail EDU 
 
 Property behind gates (North and South) $1,200 per lot (residential) 
 

2.0 Authorization to Expend Security Impact Fees 

The District’s Board of Directors shall approve all expenditures of the Security Impact 
Fee funds. 
 

3.0 In Lieu Offset for Developer Installed Public Security Improvements 

The District’s Board of Directors may consider security improvements of a public nature 
that are consistent with this policy and that are paid for and installed by the developer or 
property owner, and dedicated to the District, as in lieu offset to the payment of the 
Security Impact Fee. Approval of any in lieu offset is solely at the discretion of the 
District’s Board of Directors. Any such approval is required prior to the issue of the water 
permit(s) for the affected property. 
 
 
 



 

Z:\Board\Board Packets\2016 Board Packets\09-21-2016 Board Packet\agenda 8 b.doc 2

4.0 USE OF THE SECURITY IMPACT FEE 

The Security Impact Fee funds shall be used to support and improve the provision of 
Security services to the Rancho Murieta community through the provision of technology, 
facilities, and physical assets with the fundamental goal of protecting the people and 
property within the District. The District will work closely with landowners and residential 
and commercial owners associations on the planning, design and implementation of 
projects approved for funding with the Security Impact Fee funds. However, final 
decision and approval of projects is solely at the discretion of the District’s Board of 
Directors. 
 
The Security Impact Fee funds shall be predominately used for non-operating expenses 
with the goals of protecting life safety, deploying technology in such a manner as to act 
as a force multiplier improving Security response, protecting property, and benefitting 
landowners, homeowners and property owners and businesses from which the funds are 
derived in addition to the entire Rancho Murieta community. 
 
Such uses of the Security Impact Fee funds shall be for, but not limited to, items of the 
following nature: 
 

 Security Surveillance Camera System consistent with the May 2015 
Surveillance Camera Implementation, Integration, and Expansion Plan (to 
include, cost of design and implementation of the system and necessary 
infrastructure) 

 Consultant studies and fees to evaluate Security Department organization 
and surveillance camera system design 

 Purchase of one patrol vehicle (to include equipping and striping) 
 New locker room/training room 
 Other non-operational security enhancements as identified in the future  

 
 
 

Approved by Rancho Murieta Community Services District’s 
Board of Directors

 
 

 



   

Z:\Board\Board Packets\2016 Board Packets\09-21-2016 Board Packet\stonehouse road cover.docx 

MEMORANDUM 
 

 
Date:    September 16, 2016 

To:    Board of Directors 

From:    Darlene J. Thiel, General Manager  

Subject:  Consider Approval of Use of Water Supply Augmentation Funds for Stonehouse Road Force 
Main Assessment  

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
RECOMMENDED ACTION 

Approve use of Water Supply Augmentation  Funds  for  the  Stonehouse Road  Force Main Assessment  in an 
amount not to exceed $17,595, which includes a 10% contingency.   
 
BACKGROUND 

Due to the critical timing of conducting this Sewer force main pressure testing prior to, or in conjunction with, 
the  construction work on  Stonehouse Road  I  authorized  the work proposed by  JD Pasquetti,  see  attached 
proposal,  on  September  2,  2016  by  Purchase  Order  C21650.  This  approval  currently  authorizes  this 
expenditure  as  an  operational  expense.  As  this work  is  related  to  the  Recycled Water  System  in  getting 
recycled water  to Stonehouse Park,  it  is  reasonable  that  the cost of  this work be paid out of Water Supply 
Augmentation funds, which requires District Board approval. 
 
 



To Rancho Murieta Community Services District
15160 Jackson Road
P.O. Box 1050 Bid #16-104
Rancho Murieta, CA 95683

Attn: Ron Greenfield
Phone (916) 354-3700 Fax (916) 354-2082

     
Job 12" Sewer Main Testing
Eng. None
Soils. None

Item Description Total 

A Sewer

1 JDP has figured 5 working days for this bid, if it takes longer than 5 days it will 

be a price per day. JDP will supply a 2 man crew to snap the existing 12" 

asbestos cement pipe at 2 locations. JDP will install 2 temporary blow off 

valves on the test side of the pipe and 2 install caps on the non test side of 

pipe.JDP will load the existing 12" sewer line with water, provided to JDP from 

RMCSD, and attempt to pressure test the existing pipeline to 150 PSI. 

RMCSD to dig, provide shoring, a backhoe & operator along with 1 labor to 

assist JDP crew. The existing 12" line that has been buried and not in use 

since 1979. JDP can not guarantee that we will be able to get water to the 

end or be able to pressure test the line. 

8,375.00             

2 Pipe Material for tempoary caps 6,050.00$           
3 Pipe Material (if you want the pipe connected back together) 1,570.00$           

15,995.00$         

1 Site access available at all times, with one anticipated mobilization.
2 No erosion control, SWPPP program, reports or monitoring .
3 No Dust Control .

4

5

6 JDP shall not be responsible for removal, cleanup, damage or loss due to 

hazardous materials. Any offhaul or special handling of the abestos cement 

pipe is excluded.

7 Unless otherwise stated, this bid is based on regular hourly rates, no overtime. 

8

9 This proposal is good for 60 days from the date referenced above. 

JD Pasquetti Engineering, Inc.
3032 Thunder Valley Court

Lincoln, Ca. 95648

Phone 916-543-9401…..Fax 916-543-9426
Bid Item Breakdown

Surveying, engineering, as builts, bonds, permits, dewatering plans, soils and asphalt testing 

fees are not included. 

Retention withhold, if any, shall be due and payable within 30 days of acceptance by utility 

companies, county or city within.

Conditions and / or Exclusions

Dewatering due to groundwater infiltration is not included. 

August 31, 2016



 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
 
Date:    September 16, 2016 

To:    Board of Directors 

From:    Paul Siebensohn, Director of Field Operations 

Subject:  Review Operations Manual for the Delivery and Use of Recycled Water at Rancho Murieta 
Country Club 

__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION 

No recommendation – review and provide direction to staff.  
 
BACKGROUND 

At  the  August  17,  2016  Board meeting  Director Michael Martel  voiced  a  concern  that  the  District  is  not 
following  recycled water  regulations.  He  also  noted  he  had  provided  some  information  to  Darlene  Thiel, 
General Manager, regarding his concerns.    
 
The information given was a copy of the Operations Manual for the Delivery and Use of Recycled Water at the 
Rancho Murieta Country Club, May 2010  (Operations Manual), which had areas highlighted which were his 
concerns.  Those highlighted areas are attached with numbers drawn in in red font to address each of them. 
 
The Operations Manual was  initiated by the request of Ed Crouse and completed by HydroScience Engineers 
(HSE)  in  an  effort  to  get  better  communication,  delineation  of  responsibilities  and  input  from  the  Rancho 
Murieta Country Club  (RMCC) at  the  time  regarding  their use of  recycled water.  It was mostly based on a 
shared Waste  Discharge  Requirement  (old WDR  Order  No.5‐01‐124)  for  the  District  and  the  RMCC  and 
supplemented with information put together by HSE, District staff, and RMCC staff. It generally concerns the 
communication for use and monitoring of recycled water between the District and RMCC.  It was not a  legal 
requirement to follow this Operations Manual but it was endeavored to be followed.  It is no longer utilized as 
we  have  a  new  Waste  Discharge  Requirement  (WDR)  and  Monitoring  and  Reporting  Plan  (MRP), 
communications between the District and RMCC are going well. I have provided the RMCC a spreadsheet to fill 
out and submit to me monthly, which the Greens Superintendent has been doing regularly without delay.  We 
are  legally required to follow the requirements of the California Regional Water Quality Control Board Order 
R5‐2014‐0149, which is available for review on the District’s website. 
 
Recycled water (also known as reclaimed water) is water that has passed through the wastewater treatment 
process, cleaned by filtration and disinfection, and made available for irrigation use. 
 
The  District  and  RMCC  has  followed  and  continues  to  follow  the  Waste  Discharge  Requirements  and 
Monitoring and Reporting Programs of the Central Valley Regional Water Quality Control Board for the District 
as described and outlined in Order R5‐2014‐0149. 
 
I am providing this memo response to clarify each highlighted area of concern: 
 



 

 

1) Item 1A – Irrigation Seasons:  “RMCC may not discharge recycled water 24 hours before precipitation, 
during periods of precipitation, and for at least 24 hours after cessation of precipitation, or when soils 
are saturated (emphasis added).” 
 
Response:  No issues with violating this requirement.   
 
This item specifically references a discharge specification word for word in the previous WDR.  We now 
follow the new adopted WDR and MRP that came with the adoption  in December 2014 of Order R5‐
2014‐0149. 

 
We have followed this item and the RMCC has reported to as well.   I’ve also kept records of weather 
reports in an effort to show compliance with this and keep copies in the District network drive. 
 

2) Item #1 B – Irrigation Water Sources and Volumes. “Recycled water constitutes the primary source of 
irrigation water for the golf course. However, the tertiary treatment facilities at the RMCSD treatment 
facilities are not in operation when the demand for irrigation water is minimal or intermittent. During 
these periods, if the lake levels in Bass Lake and Lake 10/11 are such that additional water is required 
in the lakes, raw water can be pumped to Bass Lake and to Lake 10/11 from the pump in the Cosumnes 
River; water from Lake Clementia can also be fed to Lake 10/11. 
 
There are conditions in the water diversion permits that affect the times of the year that surface water 
may be diverted; the rates at which water may be diverted, and the amounts of surface water that may 
be diverted. These  limitations have been  incorporated  in the Standard Procedure for the Diversion of 
Raw Water to the Golf Course Lakes (Appendix 2). The basic regiment for the supply of irrigation water 
is summarized in Table 2‐3, below.” 
 
Response:      The RMCC has  a  riparian  right  and  an  appropriative water  right which  allows  them  to 
supply a portion of  their water needs  from  the  river  for  irrigation which span year  round as well as 
recycled water from the District.  
 

3) Item 2A:  Containment of Recycled Water. “i) There shall be no discharge to surface waters from Bass 
Lake,  Lake 10,  Lake 11,  Lake 16 and  Lake 17 and any golf  course  lake, pond, or water  feature  that 
receives recycled water for either storage or aesthetic purposes. And  ii) Not  less than two (2) feet of 
freeboard shall be maintained in all lakes and ponds that contain recycled water. 

 
Health and Aesthetic Considerations:  i) Aid in mosquito control by controlling weeds, dead algae and 
lake circulation.  And ii) Prevent nuisance odors by maintaining adequate dissolved oxygen levels in the 
lakes.” 
 
Response  to Containment of Recycled Water:   That has been and  still  is  the  requirement which  is 
being  followed.   Weekly measurements were  conducted under  the old WDR  and  some weekly  and 
some monthly measurements  are  now  recorded  per  the  new WDR  to  confirm  adequate  freeboard 
levels. 
 
Response to Health and Aesthetic Considerations:  These items are restatements from the Operations 
Manual Discharge Prohibitions, #5 & #6 in old WDR and #8 & #12 in new WDR, which have been and 
continue to be followed. 



 

 

4) Item  2B  Operating  Considerations  and  Parameters:  “The  100‐year,  365  day  rainfall  of  45  inches, 
together with other hydrologic data, has been used to calculate water balances for the  lakes and the 
volume of water that must be stored during the 100 year event. The water balances for the Bass Lake 
and Lake 10/11 watersheds are presented  in  the Appendix 3. The water balances are based upon a 
number of assumptions, including the distribution of the 45 inches of rainfall monthly. Therefore, the 
Golf  Course  Superintendent must  take  care  to  observe  and  report  any  significant  variations  in  the 
water  levels  estimated  by  the  water  balances  and  those  observed  so  that  the  reasons  for  any 
differences may be determined and the water balances re‐calibrated, if necessary.”  
 
Item 3 Lake Levels and beginning of Wet Season: “In order to assure that there will be no overflow of 
the lakes for any water year, (the period July 1 to June 30) having rainfall less than the 100‐year, 365 
day event, the water level in the lakes at the beginning of the wet season must be such that the useful 
operational storage capacity in the lake (the maximum volume that could be stored with an allowance 
for two feet of freeboard) is greater that the water that will enter the lake due to direct rainfall and the 
runoff that will enter the  lake during the wet season,  less any  irrigation and evaporation that may be 
expected during the 100 year event.  
 
Based upon the water balances at the start of the wet season (October 1), Bass Lake and Lakes 10/11 
should be drawn down to levels of 7.9 feet and 7.4 feet below their respective overflow elevations‐ the 
spillway elevation of 187.75 feet  in Bass Lake and the stand pipe overflow elevation of 153.00 feet  in 
Lake 10/11. See Figures 3‐1 and 3‐2 for a graphic depiction of the water levels in the lakes at the start 
of the wet season. “ 
 
Response to 2B and 3: The District and RMCC have coordinated to make sure adequate storage levels 
have been maintained to accept inflow from a 100 year precipitation event. The exception was back in 
2006, before my arrival, when recycled water was discharged to Bass Lake. 
 

5) Item 4A:“1) Daily Monitoring of Lakes for Odors: The Golf Course Superintendent will monitor daily or 
cause his staff to monitor the golf course  lakes daily for odors and complete the attached Daily Odor 
Monitoring Worksheet (1).”   
 
Response: The Operations Manual set up to expand odor monitoring to the RMCC ponds whereas the 
old  and  new WDR  require  “Objectionable  odors  shall  not  be  perceivable  beyond  the  limits  of  the 
WWRP property at an  intensity  that creates or  threatens  to create nuisance conditions.” The RMCC 
recorded  their pond odor monitoring. The new WDR now  requires monthly odor monitoring at  the 
storage ponds, which is conducted by District staff and provided on the monthly reports. 

 
6) Item 4B:   “2) Weekly Monitoring of Lakes  for Freeboard, Dissolved Oxygen and pH: The Golf Course 

Superintendent will monitor weekly,  or  cause  his  staff  to monitor weekly,  for  freeboard,  dissolved 
oxygen and pH and complete the attached Weekly RMCC Lakes Monitoring Worksheet (2).” 
 
Response: This was done at the RMCC ponds by the RMCC under the old WDR, sometimes with the 
assistance  of  the District,  and  given  to  the District  to  incorporate  into  the monthly  reports  to  the 
Regional Board. The District has  always monitored  its own ponds  and  reservoirs.  It  is  all now done 
solely by District staff under the new WDR, and  is continued to be reported monthly to the Regional 
Board. 

 



 

 

7) Item 4C:  “3) Golf Crouse Reclamation Monitoring: This task consists of daily monitoring of the volume 
of water  applied  to  the  golf  courses,  rainfall,  and  the  calculations  of  nitrogen  and  dissolved  solids 
applied to the golf course on a monthly basis. 
 
i) The Golf Course Superintendent enters the daily values for columns 2, 3, 5, and 9 of the Golf 

Course Reclamation Monitoring Worksheet (3). 
 
ii)  The  Director  of  Field  Operations  enters  the  values  of  the monthly  grab  samples  for  Total 

Nitrogen (Total Kjeldalh nitrogen + Nitrate nitrogen) and Total Dissolved Solids. 
 
iii)  The  values  for  the  daily  entries  in  columns  7,  10,  11  and  12  will  then  be  automatically 

calculated, as will be the reportable monthly totals in columns 11 and 12.” 
 
Response: RMCC has and  continues  to monitor  its water use on a daily basis. The District conducts 
monthly  readings of  their usage  as well,  along with daily  rainfall. The  calculations  for Nitrogen  and 
Total Dissolved Solids are done automatically as set up in our monthly report spreadsheet after input 
of water use and water quality results for those items. 

 
8) Item 5A:  “4) The Golf Course Superintendent shall transmit worksheets 1, 2, and 3 in electronic format 

to  the Director of Field Operations by  the 7th day of  the  following month  for which  the worksheets 
apply.” 
 
Response: This was an item of request by the Operations Manual for RMCC to give the District its data 
to  allow  the District  adequate  time  to  put  together  the monthly  reports  to  the  Regional  Board.  It 
generally has not been an issue. 
 

9) Item  5B:    “5)  The  Director  of  Field  Operations  shall  compile  the  information  provided  with  the 
monitoring  and  reporting  data  required  of  the  RMCSD  and  transmit  the  Joint Monthly Monitoring 
Report  to  the  RWQCB  by  23rd  of  the month,  co‐signed  by  RMCC  Golf  Course  Superintendent  or 
authorized representative. A copy of the Joint Monthly Monitoring Report shall be provided to the Golf 
Course Superintendent.” 
 
Response: This has been and continues to be done on a monthly basis. 

  
Should anyone wish to discuss or review anything further I’ll make myself available.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 
 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

 

 

 

 
 



 

 

 



 

 

 
 

 



 

 
z:\board\board packets\2016 board packets\09-21-2016 board packet\security information update.doc 
 
 P a g e  | 1   

MEMORANDUM 
 

 

Date:    September 19, 2016 

To:    Board of Directors 

From:    Paul Wagner, Security Chief 

Subject:  Receive Status Report on Security Information Update 
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 

RECOMMENDED ACTION 

No action – receive update. 
 
BACKGROUND  

Most of the Security Data request forms have been received. We are about ¾ of the way through inputting the 
updated  information we  received  into  the  system  (ABDI). There are  some  forms we need  to dig deeper on 
because we received them back “return to sender”. Once all the  information/forms we have are  in put  into 
the  system, we will  tackle  the  few  remaining  forms  that need additional communication  from and possibly 
resend some to the correct address/owners.  I believe we should have all the  forms back and  input  into the 
system within the next few weeks (mid October). 
 
Determining  the volume of email addresses  captured versus  the  total number of bar  codes  issued  is not a 
readily available piece of  information. The ABDI system has a predefined set of reports available and culling 
out  those  records with  email  addresses  is  not  a  standard  report.  Staff will  verify  through District General 
Counsel our ability to use the email addresses collected for District communication and will report back to the 
Communications Committee in October. In addition, ideas and suggestions for the type of communications to 
be sent out via mass‐email will be discussed at the October Communications Committee meeting. 
 



 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date:    September 15, 2016 

To:    Board of Directors 

From:    Paul Siebensohn, Director of Field Operations 

Subject:  Discuss Stormwater Basins within Rancho Murieta 

________________________________________________________________________________________ 

 

RECOMMENDATION ACTION 

No recommendation – review and provide direction to staff. 

 

BACKGROUND 

Rancho Murieta Storm Drainage System 
In 1988 The District created and adopted the Storm Drainage & Flood Control Master Plan. (Attachment 1) It 
provides a description of  the system and  its operation and maintenance by  the District.   Also adopted  that 
year was  the Drainage Code which  set  the guidelines  for  future amendments of  the Drainage Code  for  the 
District’s operation of the storm drainage system.  
 
The  storm  drainage  system  for  Rancho Murieta  is  comprised  of  natural  vegetated  and manmade  swales, 
extended basins, ponds, pipelines and flood control levees. The key principles that guide the system are: 
 

 To protect life and property and minimize inconvenience to the public, 
 To create a realistic balance between inconvenience and protection against a hazard, 
 To provide adequate measures to protect the natural resources within the community and 
 To protect the community's drinking water supplies from urban runoff contamination. 
  

In the past, storm drainage and flood control jurisdiction had been the overlapping responsibility of property 
owners and homeowners associations, Sacramento County and  the District.  In  the mid 1980's,  the District's 
latent authority  to provide drainage and  flood control services was exercised. The District de‐annexed  from 
the County storm drainage maintenance district and began providing drainage services to the community. 
 
Significant  storm  drainage  facilities  within  a  community  include  natural  drainage  courses  which  convey 
seasonal  run‐off,  100  year  flood  protection  levees  along  the  Cosumnes  River,  perennial  storm  drainage 
detention  basins  and marsh  and wetland  areas.  In  addition  small  to  large  diameter  pipelines  and  pump 
stations convey runoff to the ditches and river. 
 
The level of protection provided by the storm drainage system is: 
 

 Protection of developable areas from the 100 ‐year flood event. 
 Street drainage systems are designed for the 10‐year storm. 
 Culverts, open channels and natural streams are designed for the 100‐year storm. 
 Finished floor elevation should be a minimum of 1 foot above the 100‐year storm water surface. 



 

 

Maintenance of  this  system  includes  those  factors  that  are essential  to  keep  the drainage  system  in  good 
condition, maintaining an adequate staff to accomplish the work and instituting practices and procedures for 
maintenance of existing and future structures and facilities. 
 
The annual maintenance program includes inspections and periodic maintenance by mechanical equipment of 
the natural drainage  courses  and ditches,  cleaning of  silt, branches, weeds  and other debris  from ditches, 
natural courses and pipelines. In addition, the District provides periodic inspections of the levees and weekly 
monitoring and maintenance of drainage pumping facilities. 
 
Storm water from urban runoff  is one of the  leading causes of pollution  in creeks, rivers, and  lakes. In fields 
and  forests, most rain water  is absorbed by the soil and taken up by plants and trees. However, developed 
areas contain impermeable surfaces like roofs, parking lots, and streets that cause rainwater to runoff (storm 
water) and collect pollutants. Storm water that flows from those impermeable surfaces and into storm drains 
or  other  conveyance  structures without  first  flowing  through  best management  practices  (BMPs),  such  as 
grass  lined  swales  or  detention  basins,  goes  untreated  directly  into  our  creeks,  rivers,  lakes,  deltas  and 
eventually, the ocean. 
 
Storm water is a resource and is ultimately part of the hydrologic cycle, along with our potable water, so it is 
imperative to keep  it as clean as possible. Storm water can become polluted by pesticides, paint,  fertilizers, 
pet waste, litter, oil and other automotive fluids, eroded soil and household chemicals. Even small amounts of 
pollutants that accumulate on roads, parking lots, and sidewalks can be transported into nearby streams and 
rivers.  Identifying  sources of  storm water pollution and keeping  this pollution away  from  storm drains and 
ditches  is the best and most economical way to keep storm water clean ‐ which ultimately protects our vital 
water resources. 
 
Vegetated Swales 
Vegetated swales are open, shallow channels with vegetation covering the side slopes and bottom that collect 
and slowly convey  runoff  flow  to downstream discharge points.   They are designed  to  treat  runoff  through 
filtering  by  the  vegetation  in  the  channel,  filter  through  a  subsoil  matrix,  and/or  infiltration  in  to  the 
underlying soils.   Swales can be natural or manmade.   They trap particulate pollutants, promote  infiltration, 
and  reduce  the  flow  velocity  of  stormwater  runoff.    The  residents  of  Rancho Murieta  tend  to  prefer  a 
manicured look to the community, including the drainage.   
 
Therefore  the District endeavors  to  cut  vegetation  in  the drainage  system during  the  summer months.    In 
some areas some residents request we  leave them be as they enjoy the habitat they sometimes provide for 
wildlife such as redwing blackbirds, deer, etc.  We leave the vegetation alone in the rainy season to allow the 
vegetation to do its job…catch, filter, and slow down stormwater runoff. 
 
Basins 
The District’s drainage system has both wet and dry basins.   
 
Dry basins, also known as infiltration basins, are shallow impoundments that are designed to allow infiltration 
of  stormwater  into  the  ground.    They  use  the  natural  filtering  ability  of  the  soil  to  remove  pollutants  in 
stormwater runoff.  Under heavy flow they store flow until they eventually percolate into the water table, and 
are designed  for  flow through of excessively heavy rainfall periods with small openings down  low, to meter 
out flow, and larger ones up high to protect from flooding.  This practice has high pollutant removal efficiency 
and can help recharge groundwater. 



 

 

Dry Basins in south community 
Greens (Bentgrass Ct) 
Basin 12 
Basin 14 
Basin 15 
Basin 4 (Riverview park) 

 
Wet basins, also known as retention basins, capture stormwater runoff but have water  in  them  typically all 
year  round.   Rancho Murieta has  several wet basins which  include Clementia, Guadalupe,  Laguna, Basin 5, 
Granlee and 6B (hole 1 north) basins.  Wet basins have overflows which allow high water events to discharge 
to the river, while retaining water and allowing heavier sediments to settle out within them. 
 
Laguna, mentioned later in this memo, is a multifunction basin which acts as retention and irrigation basin for 
the RMA. 
 
Basins capture stormwater runoff and allow sediment to be captured vs flowing straight through to receiving 
waters, such as the Cosumnes River. 
 
Area of Responsibilities 
Many  times,  the  District  is  called  out  for  drainage  problems  outside  their  purview.  The  division  of 
responsibility  between  the  District  and  private  property  owners,  whether  individuals  or  homeowners 
associations, is as follows: 
 

 

Further detail of responsibilities are in specific agreements later in this memo. 
 
 
 



 

 

Drainage concerns between neighbors 
The  first  step  in  resolving  a  problem  is  to  have  a  friendly  conversation with  the  neighbor, who might  not 
realize  there  is a problem and might  readily agree  to  fix  it.   The uphill owner "has a natural easement  that 
permits him or her to discharge surface waters through ... a 'natural swale, hollow or depression.' The upper 
landowner's right is limited to disposition of the water the way nature intended." The uphill owner is liable if 
their  changes  cause damage  to  the downhill property. They’re also  is  liable  if  they  remove  something  that 
protects the downhill property or builds something that allows flooding downhill.  
 
Level of Service/Funding: 
The District and its Board and staff have historically endeavored to keep of its service rates low and standard 
of service high.   As noted  in the District’s Storm Drainage & Flood Control Master Plan, “The desired  level of 
service will have the most significant influence on the capital and maintenance costs of the system.”  As shown 
in the last drainage rate survey conducted in 2013, the District’s drainage rate is the lowest around and none 
of these other areas provide Midge Fly control or multiple cuttings of their drainage systems. They all follow 
the  general best management practices of  keeping drainage  channels  and basins  in  their natural  states  to 
catch, filter, and slow down stormwater runoff, only keeping inlets and outlets of culverts clear, which we do 
as well during the rainy season. 
 

 



 

 

I conducted a review of area basins and drainage channels as a comparison to Rancho Murieta.  (Attachment 
2)  As can be seen, they are left in their natural states as wetlands which allow natural vegetation to provide 
nutrient uptake of nitrogen and phosphorus, sedimentation, percolation and filtration of drainage waters. 
The District Board hired a consultant to conduct a reserve study in 2014 to see at what level the District’s 
infrastructure was funded for replacements.  For over a million dollars of drainage assets it noted that the 
District is 7.6% funded. (Attachment 2A) 
 
Levees (Flood Control) 
The District maintains two levees in the community.  One is known as Airport Levee (8068) in the commercial 
and Village area. The other is the Michigan Bar Levee (8069) in the South community. These levees protect the 
surrounding areas from inundation during a 100 year flood event along the Cosumnes River. 
 

 

The levees were deemed a Provisional Accredited Levee (PAL) by FEMA in 2009 pending submittal of a levee 
certification study and analysis. In December 2010 a levee certification analysis and evaluation, prepared by 
Carlton Engineering, was submitted to FEMA. This analysis documents the levee’s ability to meet minimum 
freeboard requirements and to structurally withstand a 100 year flooding event. Following FEMA’s review the 
levees were certified by FEMA as an Accredited Levees providing 100 year flood protection in a letter dated 
July 28, 2011. (Attachment 3) 
 
Storm water flow within each levee typically flows via gravity lines to outfalls at the Cosumnes River.  The 
gravity lines have a flap valve located on the discharge end of the pipe to prevent backflow into the 
community. Under high water conditions the flap valves remain closed and stormwater within the levee 
systems are pumped from pump stations operated and maintained by the District. 
 
Regulations 
In 1987, the Clean Water Act was amended to require that the US Environmental Protection Agency advance 
NPDES (National Pollution Discharge Elimination System) regulations for stormwater discharges.  By 1990, 
federal regulations required municipalities with greater than 100,000 people obtain an NPDES permit.  By 
1999, that requirement applied to municipalities with a population fewer than 100,000.  The NPDES regulates 
the composition of stormwater entering natural drainages to minimize local and regional impacts to water 
quality.  In California, these permits are issued by the California Regional Water Quality Control Board, Central 
Valley Region.  Sacramento County was re‐issued an NPDES permit in 1996.  It was renewed again in 
December 2002 and most recently in 2008. 
 
The District operates and manages the water systems in the District under multiple water rights and 
regulatory requirements.  A simple summary of the Water Rights periods of use attached in Attachment 4. 
The District was required to comply with new SWRCB stormwater regulations and thus followed the necessary 
guidelines to be granted a Phase II MS4 (Municipal Separate storm Sewer System) permit in 2009. The MS4 
permit for smaller systems is similar in nature to the County’s NPDES permit. A Storm Water Management 



 

 

Plan (SWMP) was developed to address MS4 permitting requirements.  Shortly thereafter, as it became too 
difficult for the SWRCB to review and manage all of the separate permits from the various MS4 permits. The 
SWRCB then required that all small MS4s adopted a General permit order from the State.  I completed a 
Notice of Intent (NOI) to comply with SWRCB Water Quality Order No.2013‐0001‐DWQ, NPDES General Permit 
No.CAS000004 for the District in 2013 and received Waste Discharger Identification number (WDID) 
5S34M200009 from the SWRCB. 
 
Another compliance issue we now face as a result of treating for midge flies in the Laguna Joaquin basin is to 
comply with regulations from the California Department of Pesticide Regulation and the SWRCB.  I developed 
and submitted a Pesticide Application Plan and a NOI to comply with the Statewide NPDES for Biological and 
Residual Pesticide Discharges.  The District received WDID#534AP00032 for permitting.  This has been 
periodically been updated as the General NPDES has had revisions, new NOIs are then submitted and 
approved.   
 
To treat bodies of water in the community with approved chemicals, I had to create an Aquatic Pesticide 
Application Plan (APAP) and submit it with another NOI to comply with another Statewide NPDES Permit for 
Residual Aquatic Pesticide Discharges to Waters of The United States From Algae and Aquatic Weed Control 
Applications.  The District was assigned General Order Number 2004‐009‐DWQ‐R5s‐066 for coverage. 
To be able to purchase and use products for the aforementioned, I had to take and pass tests from the 
California Department of Pesticide Regulation Licensing Program, for categories of Aquatics and Right of Ways.  
I also have certification categories for Microbial Pest Control and Sewer Line Root Control for Water and 
Sewer treatment.  
 
Agreements: 
Around 1987 the District and RMA set out to define the areas of responsibilities between each other and the 
RMCC which resulted in the following agreements, with some key items bulleted: 
 
‐1987 Easement Agreement ‐defines responsibilities for District and RMA and handling of charges (Attachment 
5) 

 RMA Owns the lakes and land on which they’re on, maintains above the high water line, and 
roadways 

 District is responsible for water quality and vegetation below high water lines. 

 RMA to pay District reasonable costs for water usage and service 

  
‐1988 Agreement for Availability of Recycled Water (shows matrix of responsibilities and summarizes 
easements) (Attachment 6) 
 
‐1988 Storm Drainage Flood Control Master Plan (Att.1) 
‐1994 Second Amendment to Agreement for Availability and Use of Reclaimed Water (shows updated matrix 
of responsibilities) (Attachment 7) 
 
‐1999 Lake Guadalupe Replenishment Water (Attachment 8) 

 Developer in that area contributed $11,000 to RMA 

 RMA solely responsible for maintenance 

 RMA supplemental assesses developed lots for expenses 
 
 



 

 

Vector Concerns 
The  Sacramento‐Yolo Mosquito  &  Vector  Control  District manages  vector  (disease  carrying  pests  such  as 
mosquitos) control issues in the District. Although the Vector Control District does an excellent job managing 
the vector issues throughout Rancho Murieta, the District will formally request that mosquito fish (Gambusia 
affinis) be deposited, or other control methods be use, into certain areas.  Typically when the Vector Control 
District staff has been at District facilities to harvest the mosquito fish, District staff asks them to put fish  in 
Basin 5 & Laguna Joaquin.  The effectiveness of using the fish is questionable due to the introduction of larger 
predatory fish, such as bass and bluegill, in the basins by area residents. 
 
Residents may submit concerns directly to them via the web link for the Sacramento‐Yolo Mosquito & Vector 
Control District at http://www.fightthebite.net/ 
 
 

 

 

 

 

  



 

 

Laguna Joaquin 

 
 
Description: 
It  is a relatively  large body of water  located on the North side of the Rancho Murieta community within the 
gates of the Rancho Murieta Association’s home owners association (RMA).  Laguna Joaquin is owned by the 
RMA,  but  the  Rancho  Murieta  Community  Services  District  (District)  has  an  Easement  for  Operation  & 
Maintenance of it.   
 
Laguna Joaquin serves several purposes for the community of Rancho Murieta.  For the District it is a drainage 
detention basin serving north side developments Units 1, 2, 3, and 4.  For the Cosumnes Irrigation Association 
(CIA) it may serve as a temporary water storage basin for downstream ranch irrigation.  For the Home Owner’s 
Association it is a source of water for irrigation of common ground landscaping, an aesthetic amenity, and for 
fishing recreation. 
 
Seasonal storms, typically November – March, can create enough stormwater runoff to fill and spill the basin.  
Overflow from the basin flows over a manmade spillway (photo below) and channel and into a drainage ditch 
that  flows  onto  the  Anderson  Ranch  property  south  west  of  Rancho  Murieta.    Approximately  a  mile 
downstream  from Laguna  Joaquin  is another catch basin  located on  the Anderson Ranch.   From  that catch 
basin the drainage ditch then may flow another mile to the Cosumnes River. 
 
Size: 



 

 

Laguna Joaquin Area 21.53 – 24.07 acres, volume 122 acre-feet 
Shoreline 1.14 miles long 

 
 
 
Laguna History: 
Laguna Joaquin basin was constructed in 1970 by the Operating Engineers to have a place to store water for 
irrigation of the north golf course areas that were not covered under the riparian water rights. 
 



 

 

To build  the  lake and use  the Cosumnes  Irrigation Association Ditch  to move  the water  from  the Granlee’s 
Dam to the lake, it was agreed that the ranches within the District could store irrigation water for 30 days at a 
time during the summer months. (This is within water rights allowances as regulatory storage.) 
 
The basin was  also used  to  store drainage  runoff water  and  to  store water  from  the  river  for  golf  course 
irrigation,  as  time went  on more  and more water was  being  passed  through  the  lake  from  the  drainage 
system.  In 1988 the RMCC rebuilt the north course and turned the pump station on Laguna Joaquin over to 
RMA for common area irrigation. 
 
In  1987  the District  and RMA developed  an  Easement Agreement  for  various bodies of water  and  revised 
subsequent agreements through 1994.  For Laguna it notes that the water users at Laguna Joaquin would pay 
all District costs to maintain the water quality or do any cleanup of the  lake.   As RMA  is the only user of the 
water  out  of  Laguna  Joaquin  they would  pay  the  cost  for  any water quality  improvements.  The District  is 
granted responsibility for the operations at Laguna while RMA retains right for recreation use. 
 

 
Photo of Spillway at Laguna Joaquin with staff gauge and drain valve on left side 

 
Laguna Operations: 
Per  the 1987 Easement Agreement granted by  the RMA  to  the District,  the District  is  responsible  for water 
quality and control of aquatic growth and for maintaining the water level in Laguna below the high water line; 
endeavors  to  keep  the  water  level  within  18”  of  the  spillway  (which  is  weather  and  water  availability 
dependent); is responsible for the inlets and outlets and dam;  the District recovers its cost for operation and 
maintenance by direct billing to its customers, which in the case of Laguna is RMA. The District is periodically 
asked by RMA staff to treat for algae around their pump  intake. Currently costs for service are built  into the 
District’s Raw Water rate. 
 
RMA is responsible for controlling the vegetation above the high water line and service roads around all lakes 
and reservoirs. The District may elect to perform RMA’s duties and seek reimbursement for those duties, if the 
District first notifies the RMA and allows them adequate time to perform those duties. 
 
Water  flow  into Laguna may be  from rainfall, stormwater and over  irrigation runoff, and diversion of water 
flow from the Cosumnes Irrigation Association ditch.  In instances of drought the District and RMA coordinate 



 

 

to determine  request  that  the District provide water  from Lake Clementia,  through  the CIA ditch system  to 
Laguna.  This is discussed with the RMA to balance the needs between Clementia and Laguna. 
 
Midge Flies at Laguna 
Despite its large size, it is a fairly shallow drainage basin with a soft silty bottom.  This is unfortunately an ideal 
breeding ground for midge fly larvae.  The Midge fly, commonly referred to as blind mosquitoes, do not bite 
but are a severe nuisance to the community adjacent to the basin. 
 
The District was approached by residents at the north end of Laguna Joaquin to deal with swarms of midge 
flies  that periodically emerge  from  the  Laguna  Joaquin basin.   As  a  result  the District Board  required  that 
District staff treat the basin for midge flies, budgeted $5,000 per year in drainage to deal with it, and asked the 
landowner  (RMA)  and  those most  directly  affected  (Murieta  Townhomes  Association)  to  participate.  No 
participation or sharing of costs had occurred the past several years. 
 
Initially we had Clean Lakes  Inc. give us a proposal to perform the service  for treating midge  flies at Laguna 
Joaquin at a cost of $3,337.50 per treatment.  It would typically require four treatments thus totaling the cost 
at $13,350.  Due to the extreme cost the Board rejected approving the treatments. 
 
I was asked to contact Fish & Game and the Vector Control District for help to look for a potential solution to 
this problem.  Fish & Game doesn’t normally work on issues such as this but they suggested adding fish that 
may eat the emerging midge flies which we already have done.  Also, I reviewed the life cycle of the midge fly 
and part of  its success  in continuing  its species  is to hatch an extraordinary amount of offspring to survive a 
gauntlet of predators. I then contacted the Vector Control District who said that they only focus on eliminating 
disease  carrying organisms  such as mosquitoes with  their  tight budget and would not help with non‐biting 
midge flies. 
 
I found another contractor to treat the midge flies treated in Laguna. As the cost was high I filed for the Vector 
Control NPDES as noted in the Regulations section above.  This allowed us to increase treatments from 2 times 
to 4 times per year.  Treatments were generally working well until the past few years of drought. Due to lack 
of flow through with  limited water availability and warm water, midge flies proliferated despite treatments.  
The exception was that  it had always been reported as being ok around the 4th of July each year, as I set up 
treatments to prepare for it, by timing one the first week of June and another the 4th week. 
 
This past year a Midge Fly Ad Hoc Committee was  formed  in an effort  to  seek out other  solutions. A new 
solution proposed and carried out was to add catfish and bluegill, which the RMA and MTI paid for. Another 
idea was to use a pelletized version of the product we already use.  It was purchased by the District and used, 
with  the  only  complaints  this  year  coming  shortly  after  its  use.  The  direction  of most  of  the  committee 
members is request that the District budget for and use more pelletized product in the upcoming year. 
 
Basin 5 (Lost Lake) 
Basin 5  is a 1.31 acre wet basin  that holds water all year  round.    It has  two direct outfalls  that  flow  to  the 
Cosumnes River, a  low  flow outlet with a  flap gate on  the end of  its discharge, and a high  flow outlet  that 
feeds the stormwater pump station just south of the pedestrian bridge.  
 



 

 

    
photo of inlet to Low Flow outlet                  & High Flow Outlet 

 

It has functioned very well for stormwater control releasing relatively clear water; however some surrounding 
residents have issue with its appearance and sometimes odor.  The original aesthetic and functional design of 
Basin 5 included the planting of cattails or tules (Typha) and primrose along the shorelines, and various native 
trees around the outer perimeter effectively hiding it, thus originally giving it the nickname Lost Lake.  Typha 
and primrose are throughout the state in drainage basins as they effectively help to clean the basin water by 
nutrient  uptake  before  the  water  releases  to  receiving  waters  such  as  the  Cosumnes.  However  due  to 
residential complaints for aesthetics they were removed approximately in 1998.  The shoreline was excavated 
at a sharp incline at that time to help prevent the re‐growth of cattails. 
 
Again to deal with aquatic vegetation aesthetic concerns, a permit was obtained and sterile grass carp were 
planted  in the basin to eat the vegetation, permit TCG 2‐00085. The District pays an annual stocking fee the 
Department of Fish and Wildlife  for  these  fish. Their effect  is sometimes minimal as  the surface vegetation 
grows a high rate. 
 
Continuing to address concerns, on Sept.23, 2010 the District met with the residents that surround the basin 
to discuss what had been done in the past to address their concerns for the basin’s aesthetics, as well as odor 
that they reported that comes from the basin. Through multiple meetings with the residents, District Board, 
and RMA, a final attempt at a solution was proposed which was an aeration and fountain system. The District 
purchased the system at a cost of  just under $10,000 and had  it  installed.    It was verbally agreed upon with 
the  residents at a meeting held by  them at  the basin,  that  should  this  system  fail  to meet  the 80% overall 
reduction in algae and aquatic vegetation the District would no longer continue to maintain its operation. So 
far it appears to be meeting that goal on an average basis. As per a Statement of Mutual Understanding signed 
by both the District and RMA Board president at the time, the District is responsible for the operation of the 
aeration system and RMA for the fountain. 
 



 

 

 

 
 

System Operation is generally as follows: 
Fountain: RMA will operate  the  fountain and have control and access to  the  timer.  The hours of operation 
may be subject RMA discretion, although the intention is to run the fountain during daylight hours.  Control of 
the  fountain  is  from an  irrigation  type  timer,  locked by a District 3207 Master  Lock. The  red pins  turn  the 
fountain off and the green pins turn the timer on.    If the  fountain  is not operating during  its scheduled run 
time, a ground fault interrupter (gfi) may be tripped either on the timer or where it is plugged into and outlet.  
Push in gfi reset to restart. 
 
Aerators:  The District will operate the aeration system as per the supplier’s recommendation, which is slightly 
before  the  pond  becomes  biologically  active  at  a  temperature  of  63  degrees  or  above,  typically  between 
spring‐fall. Periodic  testing of  the  temperature  should be done  to determine when  to  turn on  the aeration 
system. Control of  the  fountain  is  from an  irrigation  type  timer with on/off  toggle pins,  locked by a District 
3207 Master Lock.  When in operation, District staff should periodically check the operation of the system to 
ensure its functionality. 
 
Bodies of Water in District (map from District APAP) 
Per  the  request of a board member  to provide a  list of  the bodies of water  that  the District manages,  the 
below diagram and table is provided which I put together for the APAP. 



 

 

 
 

Name Surface Area (acres), Volume 

1) Calero 110 -114 acres, 2622 acre-feet  



 

 

2) Chesbro 62- 64 acres, 1130.7 acre-feet 

3) Clementia 71-76 acres, 907.1 acre-feet;  Swim hole area is 2.5 
acres 

4) Laguna Joaquin 21.53 – 24.07 acres, 122 acre-feet 

5) Basin 5 1.3 acres at 16.5 foot average depth 

6) Guadalupe 1.3 acres 

7) Bass Lake 6.2 acres, 6 foot average depth 

8) Hole 10 North 
Pond 

1.0 acres, 4 foot average depth 

9) 6B Basin 0.2 acres, 4.6 foot average depth 

10) South Hole 10 
Pond 

1.4 acres, 5 feet average depth 

11) South Hole 11 
Pond 

6.3, 5.5 foot average depth 

12) South Hole 6  0.28 acres 

13) South Hole 16 
Pond 

0.34 acres, >10 foot depth 

14) South Hole 17 
Pond 

0.27 acres, >10 foot depth 

15) North Hole 2 
Pond 

0.34 acres, 3.4 foot average depth 

16) Reclamation 
Plant Secondary 
Reservoir 1 & 2 

Reservoir 1 – 27.51 acres, 626 acre-feet 

Reservoir 2 – 7.03 acres, 141.97 acre-feet 

17) Reclamation 
Plant Secondary 
Ponds 

Pond 1 – 1.06 acres, P2 – 2.8 acres, P3 - 2.29 acres, 
P4 – 2.94 acres, P5 – 2.25 acres 

 
There is also Lake Jean, which is just east of Clementia and feeds into it. It is left in a natural state. 



































































































































WATER RIGHTS    PERIODS OF USE EACH YEAR

APPLICATION  /  PERMIT  /  LICENSE NAME/LOCATION JANUARY FEBRUARY MAY JUNE JULY AUGUST SEPTEMBER OCTOBER NOVEMBER DECEMBER
1       23416                   16762           Calero - Chesbro

Clementia Direct diversion to storage Nov. 1st to May 31st

2       23417              16763             13150 Laguna Joaquin
Impound local runoff up to 130 AF for recreational and stockwatering

3       23418               16764              Peralta Reservoir
No construction as yet

4       23419              16765             13285 Clementia
Pump diversion to storage impound local runoff 1240 AF for recreational and stockwatering

5       16142               10144              6238 Bass Lake
Lake 10 1.24 CFS diversion to storage and 50% riparian water right for irrigation

6       19477               12680             7744 Calero
Original Calero for storage of 49.3 acre feet

7       1838                  1030              537 Laguna Joaquin
Irrigate 22.5 acres - Move .28 CFS down CIA ditch into Laguna Joaquin (4.5 ac at Laguna Joaquin; 5 ac at RMTC; 13 ac at Murieta Village)

8       24085                                    11117 Ranch Ponds
97.0 acre feet of storage in Anderson Ranch Ponds

9                              S - 9696                        
Laguna Joaquin Riparian right to move water down CIA ditch to Laguna Joaquin including 30 day storage for irrigation of downstream ranches

10                              S - 9697 Bass Lake
Lake 10 Riparian right to place water in storage for irrigation

11       2296                   1320              2629 CIA Ditch
To move water down ditch for irrigation of farm crops

12       200057               13162             8013 Lake Guadalupe
To collect and store water for recreation    8 acre feet

13       22603                15348             9925 Lake Guadalupe
 To collect and store water for irrigation     5 acre feet

14       16143                10145             6239 Lake Jean
To collect and store water for wildlife and recreation   20 acre feet

15       23416                   16762 Yellow Bridge 
Pump Part of 6 CFS direct diversion for irrigation around Country Club

16       23416                   16762             Rock Crusher
Pump Part of 6 CFS direct diversion for O.E. Pond   west of office   dust control

17    Batter Boards Calero - Chesbro
Clementia Install 2' of batter boards in lake spill ways

APRILMARCH

Z:\Suzanne\Water Rights\water rights periods of use.xls

















































































































































































Association Reserves – SF, LLC  11/18/2014 i

3- Minute Executive Summary 

Name:   RMCSD - Drainage  Assoc. #: 27003-0 
DRAINAGE 

Location:  Rancho Murieta, CA   
# of Units:  1  
Report Period:   July 1, 2015  through June 30, 2016  

Results as-of 7/1/2015: 
Projected Starting Reserve Balance:  .............. ................................. $96,766 
Fully Funded Reserve Balance:   ................... ............................... $1,275,143 
Average Reserve Deficit (Surplus) Per Unit: ....... ......................... $1,178,377  
Percent Funded:   ................................. .................................................. 7.6% 
Recommended 2015/16 monthly Reserve Contribution: . ................ $14,500 
Recommended 2015/16 Special Assessment for Reserves : ......... $350,000 
Most Recent Reserve Contribution Rate: ............ ................................ $4,551 

Economic Assumptions: 
Net Annual “After Tax” Interest Earnings Accruing t o Reserves ...... 1.00% 
Annual Inflation Rate ............................. ............................................... 3.00% 
 

• This is a “Full” Reserve Study (original, created “ from scratch”). 

• The information in this Reserve Study is based on o ur site inspection on August 
4, 2014.  

• This Reserve Study was prepared by, or under the su pervision of, a credentialed 
Reserve Specialist (RS). 

• Because your Reserve Fund is at 7.6% Funded, this m eans the CSD’s special 
assessment & deferred maintenance risk is currently  high.  

• Your multi-year Funding Plan is designed to gradual ly bring you to the 100% 
level, or “Fully Funded”. 

• Based on this starting point, your anticipated futu re expenses, and your historical 
Reserve contribution rate, our recommendation is to  increase your Reserve 
contributions. 

• We are also recommending a one-time special assessm ent in 2015/16 to help 
strengthen the Reserve fund.   

• No assets appropriate for Reserve designation were excluded. 



Association Reserves – SF, LLC  11/18/2014 ii

  

Table 1: Executive Summary 
27003-0 

DRAINAGE 
      

  Useful  Rem. Current  Future  
  Life  Useful  Average  Average  

# Component  (yrs)  Life (yrs)  Cost  Cost  

312 Storm water Outfall Struct. Repair  30 7 $815,750 $1,003,270 
501 Levees - Repair  100 62 $400,000 $2,500,161 

1001 Backflow Devices - Replace 50%  5 1 $98,650 $101,610 
1005 Drain Valve - Replace  20 12 $55,000 $78,417 
1005 Equipment - Replace  10 5 $15,150 $17,563 
1007 Fire hydrants - Replace (Partial)  25 5 $165,550 $191,918 
1009 Drainage Culverts - Repair  5 1 $93,500 $96,305 
1011 Main Lift South - Repair/Replace  20 10 $125,000 $167,990 
1012 Crest Lift Station - Repair  20 10 $45,000 $60,476 
1013 Greens Lift Station - Repair  20 10 $45,000 $60,476 
1014 FAA Lift Station - Repair  20 10 $45,000 $60,476 
2113 CIA Ditch - Maintain  10 6 $130,000 $155,227 

12 Total Funded Components      
 
Note 1:  Yellow highlighted line items are expected to require attention in initial year.  
Note 2:  a Useful Life of “N/A” means a one-time expense, not expected to repeat. 
 







































 

 

MEMORANDUM 
 
Date:    September 16, 2016 September 19, 2016 

To:    Board of Directors 

From:    Darlene J Thiel, General Manager and  
Paul Siebensohn, Director of Field Operations 

Subject:  Project updates  
__________________________________________________________________________________________ 
 
PARKS COMMITTEE 
No word yet on the scheduling of the next Park Committee meeting. 
 
PENDING AND PROPOSED LAND DEVELOPMENT PROJECTS 
Renewed  activity  is  occurring  on  the  Riverview  and  Murieta  Hills  ‐  Residences  East  developments.  The 
developers of these two projects are seeking an extension of their tentative maps.   andThe Lakeview request 
for tentative map extension will be on the CCPAC agenda for September 28, 2016. 
 
ESCUELA GATE 
Weber General Engineering has been awarded the contract for the Stonehouse at Escuela Drive Improvement 
Project by the County of Sacramento. The project consists of roadway grading, drainage  improvements, new 
asphalt pavement  sections,  striping, and  signage. The  contract duration of work  is 30 working days, which 
began September 12, 2016 with an expected completion date of October 24, 2016.  
 
Stonehouse Road  is closed to through traffic from September 15, 2016 through the completion date. Access 
will be made for emergency vehicles. Detour signage is out.   
 
MIDGE FLY AD HOC COMMITTEE 
Update to be provided by Director Ferraro. 
 
SOLAR POWER INSTALLATIONS 
Wastewater Treatment Plant Site 
The  subcontractor  for  Solar  City  has  pulled  the  power 
cables  from  the  inverters  at  the  solar  field  to  the 
switchgear  panels  at  the  Wastewater  Plant  Control 
building.  SMUD’s  remote  monitoring  equipment  was 
delivered and installed as well. 
 
The next  step  is  to  install  the electrical  conduits  for  the 
power  runs  between  the  switchgear  panels  and 
transformers and then pour concrete pads for the panels 
and to pull and terminate wiring. SMUD has not provided 
a date for the delivery of the new transformer or running 
of the new power feed yet.  At this point, it is anticipated 
that the project may be online by the end of October of 
this year. 

Photo of new switchgear and breaker panel and SMUD monitoring 
equipment panels. 



 

 

Water Treatment Plant Site 
Solar  City  is  reporting  that  they  anticipate  receiving  a  permit  from  Sacramento  County  to  allow  them  to 
proceed at the Water Treatment Plant Site beginning next week. The apparent hold up on getting approval is 
the review from the Fire Department which is being done by a third party reviewer. 
 



 

Z:\Board\Board Packets\2016 Board Packets\09-21-2016 Board Packet\agenda 14 a.doc 

CONFERENCE/EDUCATION SCHEDULE 

 

Date:  September 13, 2016 

To:  Board of Directors 

From:  Suzanne Lindenfeld, District Secretary 

Subject:  Review Upcoming Conference/Education Opportunities 

 
This  report  is  prepared  in  order  to  notify  Directors  of  upcoming  educational  opportunities.  Directors 
interested  in  attending  specific  events  or  conferences  should  contact  me  to  confirm  attendance  for 
reservation purposes. The Board will discuss any requests from Board members desiring to attend upcoming 
conferences and approve those requests as deemed appropriate.  
 
Board members must provide brief reports on meetings that they have attended at the District’s expense. (AB 
1234).  
 
The upcoming conferences/educational opportunities include the following: 
 
 

CALIFORNIA SPECIAL DISTRICT ASSOCIATION (CSDA) 
 
Annual Conference      October 10‐13, 2016          San Diego   
       

 
GOLDEN STATE RISK MANAGEMENT ASSOCIATION (GSRMA) 

 
GSRMA’s 12th Annual Training  October 20‐21, 2016          Corning, CA 

 
ASSOCIATION OF CALIFORNIA WATER AGENCIES (ACWA) 

 
ACWA 2016 Regulatory Summit  October 3‐4, 2016          Sacramento   
  


	September 21, 2016 Agenda
	A-1 Call to Order
	A-2 Adopt Agenda
	A-3 Special Announcements
	A-4 Public Comments
	A-5 Consent Calendar
	5a August 2016 Board Minutes 
	5b Security Committee Minutes 
	5c Bills Paid Listing

	A-6 Staff Reports
	6a General Manager's Report
	6b Admin/Financial Reports 
	6c Security Report
	6d W/WW/Drainage Report

	A-7 Correspondence
	A-8 Security Impact Fee Policy
	Policy P2016-02

	A-9 Stonehouse Road Assessment
	A-10 Recycled Water Operations
	A-11 Security Information Update
	A-12 Stormwater Basins
	Stormwater Review
	stormewater cover
	stormwater attach 1
	stormwater attach 2
	stormwater attach 3
	stormwater attach 4
	1987 RMA-CSD easement agreement for Lakes
	Exhibit a & b

	stormwater attach 5
	stormwater attach 6
	stormwater attach 7
	stormwater attach 8
	stormwater attach 9
	stormwater attach 10
	folsom basin
	IMG_6205
	IMG_6207
	IMG_6208
	IMG_6209
	IMG_6213
	IMG_6214
	IMG_6218
	IMG_6252
	IMG_6253
	IMG_6254
	IMG_6256
	IMG_6257
	IMG_6262
	IMG_6263
	IMG_6264
	IMG_6269
	IMG_6273



	A-13 Updates
	A-14 Education
	A-15 Meeting Dates/Times
	A-16 Director Comments
	A-17 Adjournment




